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UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-Q

x QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
ACT OF 1934

FOR THE QUARTERLY PERIOD ENDED MARCH 31, 2010
OR

¨ TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
ACT OF 1934 FOR THE TRANSITION PERIOD FROM                      TO                     .

COMMISSION FILE NUMBER: 0-23599

MERCURY COMPUTER SYSTEMS, INC.
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MASSACHUSETTS 04-2741391
(State or other jurisdiction of

incorporation or organization)

(I.R.S. Employer

Identification No.)

201 RIVERNECK ROAD

CHELMSFORD, MA

01824

(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)
978-256-1300

(Registrant�s telephone number, including area code)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant: (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject
to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.    Yes x    No ¨

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, every Interactive Data
File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that
the registrant was required to submit and post such files).    Yes ¨    No ¨

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting
company. See definitions of �large accelerated filer,� �accelerated filer� and �smaller reporting company� in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated filer ¨    Accelerated filer x    Non-accelerated filer ¨    Smaller reporting company ¨

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined by Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act)     Yes ¨    No x

Shares of Common Stock outstanding as of May 1, 2010: 23,676,431 shares
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PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION

ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MERCURY COMPUTER SYSTEMS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(In thousands, except per share and share data)

(Unaudited)

March 31,
2010

June 30,
2009

Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 58,824 $ 46,950
Marketable securities 34,057 44,977
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $375 and $425 at March 31, 2010 and June 30, 2009,
respectively 30,387 28,595
Inventory 20,059 16,805
Option to sell auction rate securities at par 3,814 5,030
Prepaid income taxes 2,467 384
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 2,392 3,364

Total current assets 152,000 146,105
Restricted cash 3,000 3,000
Property and equipment, net 9,271 7,960
Goodwill 57,653 57,653
Acquired intangible assets, net 1,549 2,911
Other non-current assets 1,892 1,743

Total assets $ 225,365 $ 219,372

Liabilities and Shareholders� Equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 10,242 $ 3,770
Accrued expenses 6,177 7,449
Accrued compensation 8,201 9,372
Borrowings under line of credit and current capital lease obligations 24,984 33,408
Income taxes payable 1,399 2,316
Deferred revenues and customer advances 7,320 7,840
Current liabilities of discontinued operations 23 1,234

Total current liabilities 58,346 65,389
Deferred gain on sale-leaseback 7,002 7,870
Other non-current liabilities 1,453 1,076

Total liabilities 66,801 74,335
Commitments and contingencies (Note N)
Shareholders� equity:
Preferred stock, $.01 par value; 1,000,000 shares authorized; no shares issued or outstanding �  �  
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Common stock, $.01 par value; 85,000,000 shares authorized; 22,664,900 and 22,376,069 shares issued and
outstanding at March 31, 2010 and June 30, 2009, respectively 227 224
Additional paid-in capital 108,644 104,843
Retained earnings 49,018 39,313
Accumulated other comprehensive income 675 657

Total shareholders� equity 158,564 145,037

Total liabilities and shareholders� equity $ 225,365 $ 219,372

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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MERCURY COMPUTER SYSTEMS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(In thousands, except per share data)

(Unaudited)

Three Months Ended
March 31,

Nine Months Ended
March 31,

2010 2009 2010 2009
Net revenues $ 43,603 $ 50,563 $ 136,192 $ 140,497
Cost of revenues 18,800 21,380 58,222 60,983

Gross margin 24,803 29,183 77,970 79,514
Operating expenses:
Selling, general and administrative 12,538 12,584 37,367 38,666
Research and development 10,629 11,118 30,726 33,001
Impairment of long-lived assets 61 �  211 �  
Amortization of acquired intangible assets 434 498 1,302 1,955
Restructuring (11) 239 243 713

Total operating expenses 23,651 24,439 69,849 74,335

Income from operations 1,152 4,744 8,121 5,179
Interest income 195 239 437 1,920
Interest expense (147) (497) (317) (2,280) 
Other income, net 264 317 799 120

Income from continuing operations before income taxes 1,464 4,803 9,040 4,939
Income tax (benefit) expense (2,235) 101 (999) 101

Income from continuing operations 3,699 4,702 10,039 4,838
Loss from discontinued operations, net of income taxes (423) (704) (408) (19,696) 
Gain on sale of discontinued operations, net of income taxes �  4,152 74 4,640

Net income (loss) $ 3,276 $ 8,150 $ 9,705 $ (10,218) 

Basic net earnings (loss) per share:
Income from continuing operations $ 0.16 $ 0.21 $ 0.45 $ 0.22
Loss from discontinued operations (0.02) (0.03) (0.02) (0.89) 
Gain on sale of discontinued operations �  0.19 �  0.21

Net income (loss) $ 0.14 $ 0.37 $ 0.43 $ (0.46) 

Diluted net earnings (loss) per share:
Income from continuing operations $ 0.16 $ 0.21 $ 0.44 $ 0.22
Loss from discontinued operations (0.02) (0.03) (0.02) (0.88) 
Gain on sale of discontinued operations �  0.18 �  0.20

Net income (loss) $ 0.14 $ 0.36 $ 0.42 $ (0.46) 

Weighted-average common shares outstanding:
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Basic 22,627 22,208 22,509 22,113

Diluted 23,152 22,486 22,921 22,374

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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MERCURY COMPUTER SYSTEMS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(In thousands)

(Unaudited)

Nine Months Ended
March 31,

2010 2009
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income (loss) $ 9,705 $ (10,218) 
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization expense 5,092 7,493
Stock-based compensation expense 2,968 4,630
Impairment of goodwill and long-lived assets 211 14,555
Deferred income taxes (64) (176) 
Non-cash interest expense 11 780
Gross tax windfall from stock-based compensation (819) (601) 
Gain on sale of discontinued operations (74) (4,640) 
Other non-cash income (977) (868) 
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of effects of businesses disposed of:
Accounts receivable (1,872) (4,334) 
Inventory (3,264) 5,305
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 950 5,141
Prepaid income taxes (2,330) �  
Other assets (86) 386
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 3,996 (4,267) 
Deferred revenues and customer advances (570) (3,313) 
Income taxes payable (916) (258) 
Other long term liabilities 334 (1,759) 

Net cash provided by operating activities 12,295 7,856

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of marketable securities �  (138,583) 
Sales and maturities of marketable securities 12,175 198,878
Purchases of property and equipment (4,948) (3,188) 
Payments for acquired intangible assets (183) �  
Proceeds from life insurance policies redemption �  831
(Payments) proceeds from sale of discontinued operations, net (805) 819

Net cash provided by investing activities 6,239 58,757

Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from employee stock plans 1,266 413
(Payments) borrowings under line of credit, net (8,432) 33,316
Payments of deferred financing activities (169) �  
Gross tax windfall from stock-based compensation 819 601
Repurchases of common stock (428) (404) 
Payments of principal under notes payable �  (119,688) 
Proceeds (payments) of capital lease obligations 44 (178) 

Net cash used in financing activities (6,900) (85,940) 

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 240 866
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Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 11,874 (18,461) 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 46,950 59,045

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 58,824 $ 40,584

Cash paid (received) during the period for:
Interest $ �  $ 1,868

Income benefit (taxes), net 2,504 (3,911) 

Supplemental disclosures�non-cash activities:
Issuance of restricted stock awards to employees $ 6,112 $ 51

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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MERCURY COMPUTER SYSTEMS, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Amounts in thousands, except per share data)

A. Description of Business

Mercury Computer Systems, Inc. (the �Company� or �Mercury�) designs, manufactures and markets high-performance embedded, real-time digital
signal and image processing systems and software for embedded and other specialized computing markets. The Company�s solutions are
involved in a wide range of applications, transforming sensor data to information for analysis and interpretation. In military reconnaissance and
surveillance platforms, the Company�s systems process real-time radar, sonar and signals intelligence data. The Company�s systems are also used
in semiconductor imaging applications including photomask generation and wafer inspection. The Company also provides radio frequency
products for enhanced communications capabilities in military and commercial applications. Additionally, the Company entered the defense
prime contracting market space in fiscal 2008 through the creation of its wholly-owned subsidiary, Mercury Federal Systems, Inc. (�MFS�) to
focus on reaching the federal intelligence agencies and homeland security programs. The Company�s primary markets are aerospace and defense,
specifically in the Intelligence, Surveillance and Reconnaissance (�ISR�) space, which includes radar, electronic warfare, sonar and electro-optical
markets; and commercial markets, which include semiconductor, commercial computing and homeland security markets.

B. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared by the Company in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (�U.S. GAAP�) for interim financial information and with the instructions to the Form 10-Q and Article
10 of Regulation S-X. Certain information and footnote disclosures, normally included in annual consolidated financial statements have been
condensed or omitted pursuant to those rules and regulations; however, in the opinion of management, the financial information reflects all
adjustments, consisting of adjustments of a normal recurring nature, necessary for fair presentation. These consolidated financial statements
should be read in conjunction with the audited financial statements and related notes for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009 which are contained
in the Company�s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (�SEC�). The results for the three and nine
months ended March 31, 2010 are not necessarily indicative of the results to be expected for the full fiscal year.

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiaries. All intercompany transactions
and balances have been eliminated. The fiscal 2009 consolidated financial statements, excluding the statement of cash flows, were reclassified to
reflect the discontinuation and sale of the Biotech business (�Biotech�), the Visage Imaging (�VI�) business and the Visualization Sciences Group
(�VSG�) business, in accordance with the Financial Accounting Standards Board (�FASB�) issued ASC 360, Property, Plant, and Equipment (�FASB
ASC 360�), previously SFAS No. 144 (see Note P).

During the third quarter of fiscal 2010, the Company identified errors totaling $428 primarily related to deferred revenue, of which $108, $219
and $101 understated income in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2009, and the first and second quarters of fiscal 2010, respectively. The Company
recorded an increase in revenue of $96 and a reduction to cost of goods sold of $332 in the third quarter of fiscal 2010 to adjust for the errors and
correctly reflect the March 31, 2010 year-to-date period. The Company has concluded that the impact of these errors is not material to prior
periods or the three and nine months ended March 31, 2010.

USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent

6
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assets and liabilities at the dates of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting periods.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

RECENTLY ADOPTED ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In June 2009, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (�SFAS�) No. 168, The FASB Accounting Standards CodificationTM

and the Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles�a replacement of FASB Statement No. 162 (�FASB SFAS 168�). SFAS 168
establishes the FASB Accounting Standards CodificationTM (�Codification�) as the source of authoritative U.S. GAAP for nongovernmental
entities. The Codification does not change U.S. GAAP. Instead, it takes the thousands of individual pronouncements that currently comprise
U.S. GAAP and reorganizes them into approximately 90 accounting Topics, and displays all Topics using a consistent structure. Contents in
each Topic are further organized first by Subtopic, then Section and finally Paragraph. The Paragraph level is the only level that contains
substantive content. Citing particular content in the Codification involves specifying the unique numeric path to the content through the Topic,
Subtopic, Section and Paragraph structure. FASB suggests that all citations begin with �FASB ASC,� where ASC stands for Accounting Standards
Codification. Changes to the ASC subsequent to June 30, 2009 are referred to as Accounting Standards Updates (�ASU�).

In conjunction with the issuance of FASB SFAS 168, the FASB also issued ASU No. 2009-1, Topic 105�Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles (�FASB ASU 2009-1�), which includes FASB SFAS 168 in its entirety as a transition to the ASC. FASB ASU 2009-1 is effective for
interim and annual periods ending after September 15, 2009 and will not have an impact on the Company�s financial position or results of
operations but will change the referencing system for accounting standards.

Certain of the following pronouncements were issued prior to the issuance of the ASC and adoption of the ASUs. For such pronouncements,
citations to the applicable Codification by Topic, Subtopic and Section are provided where applicable in addition to the original standard type
and number.

Effective February 2010, the Company adopted FASB ASU 2010-09, Subsequent Events (�FASB ASU 2010-09�), which updated FASB ASC
855, Subsequent Events (�FASB ASC 855�). FASB ASU 2010-09 clarifies the date through which the Company is required to evaluate subsequent
events. SEC filers will be required to evaluate subsequent events through the date that the financial statements are issued. Such adoption had no
impact on the Company�s financial position or results of operations as it only amends required disclosures.

Effective January 1, 2010, the Company adopted FASB ASU 2010-06, Improving Disclosures about Fair Value Measurements (�FASB ASU
2010-06�). FASB ASU 2010-06 requires additional disclosures about fair value measurements including transfers in and out of Levels 1 and 2
and a higher level of disaggregation for the different types of financial instruments. For the reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements,
information about purchases, sales, issuances and settlements are presented separately. This standard is effective for interim and annual reporting
periods beginning after December 15, 2009 with the exception of revised Level 3 disclosure requirements which are effective for interim and
annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2010. Comparative disclosures are not required in the year of adoption. Such adoption
did not have a material impact on the Company�s financial position or results of operation.

Effective July 1, 2009, the Company adopted FASB ASU No. 2009-13, Multiple-Deliverable Revenue Arrangements (�FASB ASU 2009-13�),
which amends FASB ASC 605, Revenue Recognition. FASB ASU 2009-13 amends the FASB ASC to eliminate the residual method of
allocation for multiple-deliverable revenue arrangements, and requires that arrangement consideration be allocated at the inception of an
arrangement to all deliverables using the relative selling price method. The ASU also establishes a selling price hierarchy for determining the
selling price of a deliverable, which includes: (1) vendor-specific objective evidence if available; (2) third-party evidence if vendor-specific
objective evidence is not available; and (3) best estimated selling price if neither vendor-specific nor third-party evidence is
available. Additionally, FASB ASU 2009-13 expands the disclosure requirements related to a vendor�s multiple-deliverable revenue
arrangements. This guidance is
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effective for the Company July 1, 2010; however, the Company has elected to early adopt as permitted by the guidance. As such, the Company
will prospectively apply the provisions of FASB ASU 2009-13 to all revenue arrangements entered into or materially modified after July 1,
2009. See Note C for disclosures regarding the adoption of FASB ASU 2009-13.

Effective July 1, 2009, the Company adopted FASB ASU No. 2009-14, Certain Revenue Arrangements That Include Software Elements (�FASB
ASU 2009-14�), which amends FASB ASC 985, Software. FASB ASU 2009-14 amends the FASB ASC to change the accounting model for
revenue arrangements that include both tangible products and software elements, such that tangible products containing both software and
non-software components that function together to deliver the tangible product�s essential functionality are no longer within the scope of software
revenue guidance. This guidance is effective for the Company July 1, 2010; however, the Company has elected to early adopt as permitted by
the guidance. As such, the Company will prospectively apply the provisions of FASB ASU 2009-14 to all revenue arrangements entered into or
materially modified after July 1, 2009. Such adoption did not have a material impact on the Company�s financial position or results of operations.

Effective July 1, 2009, the Company adopted FASB ASC 805, Business Combinations (�FASB ASC 805� and formerly referred to as SFAS
No. 141(R) and SFAS No. 141(R)-1). FASB ASC 805 requires the acquisition method to be applied to all transactions and other events in which
an entity obtains control over one or more other businesses, requires the acquirer to recognize the fair value of all assets and liabilities acquired,
even if less than one hundred percent ownership is acquired, and establishes the acquisition date fair value as measurement date for all assets and
liabilities assumed. Additionally, FASB ASC 805-20 provides further guidance on the initial recognition and measurement, subsequent
measurement and accounting, and discloses assets and liabilities arising from contingencies in business combinations. The guidance within
FASB ASC 805 is effective prospectively for any acquisitions made after July 1, 2009. In the period of adoption, the Company had no
acquisitions and as such, the adoption did not have a material impact on the Company�s financial position or results of operations.

Effective July 1, 2009, the Company adopted FASB Staff Position (�FSP�) No. 142-3, Determination of the Useful Life of Intangible Assets, which
was primarily codified into FASB ASC 350�Intangibles�Goodwill and Other (�FASB ASC 350�) in the FASB ASC. This guidance amends the
factors that should be considered in developing renewal or extension assumptions used to determine the useful life of a recognized intangible
asset and requires enhanced related disclosures. FASB ASC 350 improves the consistency between the useful life of a recognized intangible
asset and the period of expected cash flows used to measure the fair value of the asset. This guidance must be applied prospectively to all
intangible assets acquired as of and subsequent to fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008. This guidance became effective for the
Company on July 1, 2009. Although future transactions involving intangible assets may be affected by this guidance, it did not impact the
Company�s financial position or results of operations as the Company did not acquire any intangible assets during the three and nine months
ended March 31, 2010.

Effective July 1, 2009, the Company adopted FSP No. 107-1 and APB Opinion 28-1, Interim Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial
Instruments, which is now part of FASB ASC 825, Financial Instruments (�FASB ASC 825�). FASB ASC 825 requires disclosures about fair
value of financial instruments for interim and annual reporting periods and is effective for interim reporting periods ending after June 15, 2009.
Such adoption did not have a material impact on the Company�s financial position or results of operations.

Effective August 2009, the Company adopted FASB ASU No. 2009-05, Measuring Liabilities at Fair Value (�FASB ASU 2009-05�), which
amends FASB ASC 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures. FASB ASU 2009-05 provides clarification and guidance regarding how to
value a liability when a quoted price in an active market is not available for that liability. The changes to the FASB ASC as a result of this
update were effective for the Company on October 1, 2009. Such adoption did not have a material impact on the Company�s financial position or
results of operations.
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RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In March 2010, the FASB ratified ASU 2010-17, Revenue Recognition�Milestone Method (Topic 605): Milestone Method of Revenue
Recognition (�FASB ASU 2010-17�), which provides guidance related to revenue recognition that applies to arrangements with milestones
relating to research or development deliverables. This guidance provides criteria that must be met to recognize consideration that is contingent
upon achievement of a substantive milestone in its entirety in the period in which the milestone is achieved. This guidance is effective for the
Company on July 1, 2010 and is not expected to have a material impact to its consolidated financial position or results of operations.

C. Multiple-Deliverable Arrangements

The Company enters into multiple-deliverable arrangements that may include a combination of hardware components, related integration or
other services. These arrangements generally do not include any performance-, cancellation-, termination- or refund-type provisions. Total
revenue recognized under multiple-deliverable revenue arrangements in the three and nine months ended March 31, 2010 was approximately
42% and 52% of total revenues, respectively. Revenue recognized under multiple-deliverable arrangements in the three and nine months ended
March 31, 2009 was approximately 63% of total revenues. Typically, 80% to 90% of the Company�s multiple-deliverable revenue arrangements
ship complete within the same quarter.

Effective July 1, 2009, the Company adopted FASB ASU No. 2009-13, Multiple-Deliverable Revenue Arrangements, which amends FASB ASC
Topic 605, Revenue Recognition. FASB ASU 2009-13 eliminates the residual method of allocation for multiple-deliverable revenue
arrangements and requires that arrangement consideration be allocated at the inception of an arrangement to all deliverables using the relative
selling price method. FASB ASU 2009-13 also establishes a selling price hierarchy for determining the selling price of a deliverable, which
includes: (1) vendor-specific objective evidence if available; (2) third-party evidence if vendor-specific objective evidence is not available; and
(3) best estimated selling price if neither vendor-specific nor third-party evidence is available. Additionally, FASB ASU 2009-13 expands the
disclosure requirements related to a vendor�s multiple-deliverable revenue arrangements. This guidance is effective for the Company on July 1,
2010; however, the Company elected to early adopt, as permitted by the guidance. As such, the Company has prospectively applied the
provisions of FASB ASU 2009-13 to all revenue arrangements entered into or materially modified after July 1, 2009.

Per the provisions of FASB ASU 2009-13, the Company allocates arrangement consideration to each deliverable in an arrangement based on its
relative selling price. The Company determines selling price using vendor specific objective evidence (�VSOE�), if it exists, otherwise third-party
evidence (�TPE�). If neither VSOE nor TPE of selling price exists for a unit of accounting, the Company uses best estimated selling price (�BESP�).
The Company generally expects that it will not be able to establish TPE due to the nature of the markets in which the Company competes, and,
as such, the Company typically will determine selling price using VSOE or BESP.

VSOE is generally limited to the price charged when the same or similar product is sold separately or, if applicable, the stated substantive
renewal rate in the agreement. If a product or service is seldom sold separately, it is unlikely that the Company can determine VSOE for the
product or service. The Company defines VSOE as a median price of recent standalone transactions that are priced within a narrow range, as
defined by the Company.

TPE is determined based on the prices charged by competitors of the Company for a similar deliverable when sold separately. As noted above,
the Company typically is not able to use TPE as the Company is usually unable to obtain sufficient information on competitor pricing to
substantiate TPE.

If the Company is unable to establish selling price using VSOE or TPE, and the order was received or materially modified after the Company�s
FASB ASU 2009-13 implementation date of July 1, 2009, the Company will use BESP in its allocation of arrangement consideration. The
objective of BESP is to determine the price at which the Company would transact if the product or service were sold by the Company on a
standalone basis.

9
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The Company�s determination of BESP involves the consideration of several factors based on the specific facts and circumstances of each
arrangement. Specifically, the Company considers the cost to produce the deliverable, the anticipated margin on that deliverable, the selling
price and profit margin for similar parts, the Company�s ongoing pricing strategy and policies (as evident from the price list established and
updated by management on a regular basis), the value of any enhancements that have been built into the deliverable and the characteristics of the
varying markets in which the deliverable is sold.

Since the adoption of FASB ASU 2009-13 on July 1, 2009, the Company has primarily used its ongoing pricing strategy and policies to
determine BESP. The Company has corroborated the BESP determined by ongoing pricing strategy and policies with the cost to produce the
deliverable, the anticipated margin on the deliverable, the selling price and profit margin for similar parts and the characteristics of the varying
markets in which the deliverables are sold. The Company will determine BESP for deliverables in future agreements based on the specific facts
and circumstances of each arrangement.

The Company plans to analyze the selling prices used in its allocation of arrangement consideration at a minimum on an annual basis. Selling
prices will be analyzed on a more frequent basis if a significant change in the Company�s business necessitates a more timely analysis or if the
Company experiences significant variances in its selling prices.

Each deliverable within the Company�s multiple-deliverable revenue arrangements is accounted for as a separate unit of accounting under the
guidance of FASB ASU 2009-13 if both of the following criteria are met: the delivered item or items have value to the customer on a standalone
basis; and for an arrangement that includes a general right of return relative to the delivered item(s), delivery or performance of the undelivered
item(s) is considered probable and substantially in the control of the Company. The Company considers a deliverable to have standalone value if
the item is sold separately by the Company or another vendor or if the item could be resold by the customer. Further, the Company�s revenue
arrangements generally do not include a general right of return relative to delivered products.

Deliverables not meeting the criteria for being a separate unit of accounting are combined with a deliverable that does meet that criterion. The
appropriate allocation of arrangement consideration and recognition of revenue is then determined for the combined unit of accounting.

As a result of implementing FASB ASU 2009-13, the Company recognized $3,138 and $7,487 in revenue in the three and nine months ended
March 31, 2010, respectively, which would have been deferred under the previous guidance for multiple element arrangements. The Company
anticipates that the effect of the adoption of this guidance on subsequent periods will be primarily based on the substance of the arrangements
entered into or materially modified after the July 1, 2009 adoption date and the timing of the shipments of the deliverables within these
arrangements.

D. Stock-Based Compensation

STOCK OPTION PLANS

The number of shares authorized for issuance under the Company�s 2005 Stock Incentive Plan, as amended and restated (the �2005 Plan�), is 4,092
shares, which will be increased by any future cancellations, forfeitures, expirations or terminations (other than by exercise) under the Company�s
1997 Stock Option Plan (�the 1997 Plan�). The 2005 Plan provides for the grant of non-qualified and incentive stock options, restricted stock,
stock appreciation rights and deferred stock awards to employees and non-employees. All stock options are granted with an exercise price of not
less than 100% of the fair value of the Company�s common stock at the date of grant and the options generally have a term of seven years. There
were 2,410 shares available for future grant under the 2005 Plan at March 31, 2010.

The number of shares authorized for issuance under the 1997 Plan was 8,650 shares, of which 100 shares could be issued pursuant to restricted
stock grants. The 1997 Plan provided for the grant of non-qualified and incentive stock options and restricted stock to employees and
non-employees. All stock options were granted with an exercise price of not less than 100% of the fair value of the Company�s common stock at
the date of grant. The options typically vest over periods of zero to four years and have a maximum term of 10 years.
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Following shareholder approval of the 2005 Plan on November 14, 2005, the Company�s Board of Directors directed that no further grants of
stock options or other awards would be made under the 1997 Plan, and the 1997 Plan subsequently expired in June 2007. The foregoing does not
affect any outstanding awards under the 1997 Plan, which remains in full force and effect in accordance with their terms.

EMPLOYEE STOCK PURCHASE PLAN

The number of shares authorized for issuance under the Company�s 1997 Employee Stock Purchase Plan, as amended and restated (�ESPP�), is
1,100 shares. Under the ESPP, rights are granted to purchase shares of common stock at 85% of the lesser of the market value of such shares at
either the beginning or the end of each six-month offering period. The ESPP permits employees to purchase common stock through payroll
deductions, which may not exceed 10% of an employee�s compensation as defined in the ESPP. There were 50 and 46 shares issued under the
ESPP during the nine months ended March 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. Shares available for future purchase under the ESPP totaled 298 at
March 31, 2010.

STOCK OPTION AND AWARD ACTIVITY

The following table summarizes activity of the Company�s stock option plans since June 30, 2008:

Options Outstanding

Number of
Shares

Weighted Average
Exercise Price

Weighted Average
Remaining

Contractual Term
(Years)

Outstanding at June 30, 2008 3,733 $ 16.88 6.20
Grants 559 6.68
Exercises (22) 7.68
Cancellations(1) (1,290) 19.57

Outstanding at June 30, 2009 2,980 $ 13.87 5.69
Grants 56 10.41
Exercises (112) 7.72
Cancellations (277) 17.69

Outstanding at March 31, 2010 2,647 $ 13.65 5.03

(1) Options cancelled as part of the Company�s shareholder-approved option exchange program, totaling 394 options, are included in the
cancellation figure.

The following table summarizes the status of the Company�s non-vested restricted stock awards since June 30, 2008:

Non-Vested Restricted Stock Awards

Number of
Shares

Weighted Average
Grant  Date
Fair Value

Outstanding at June 30, 2008 866 $ 13.18
Granted(1) 384 5.99
Vested (375) 13.48
Forfeited (209) 12.70

Outstanding at June 30, 2009 666 $ 8.97
Granted 601 10.17
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Vested (169) 11.90
Forfeited (85) 7.61

Outstanding at March 31, 2010 1,013 $ 9.31

(1) Awards issued as a result of the Company�s shareholder-approved option exchange program, totaling 154 awards, at a weighted-average
fair value of $8.71, are included in the granted figure.
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STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION ASSUMPTIONS AND EXPENSE

The Company recognized the full impact of its share-based payment plans in the consolidated statements of operations for the three and nine
months ended March 31, 2010 and 2009 in accordance with FASB ASC 718, Compensation�Stock Compensation (�FASB ASC 718�), previously
SFAS No. 123R, and did not capitalize any such expenses on the consolidated balance sheets, as expenses that qualified for capitalization were
not material. Under the fair value recognition provisions of FASB ASC 718, stock-based compensation expense is measured at the grant date
based on the fair value of the award and is recognized as expense over the service period. The following table presents share-based
compensation expenses included in the Company�s consolidated statement of operations:

Three Months Ended
March 31,

Nine Months Ended
March 31,

2010 2009 2010 2009
Cost of revenues $ 56 $ 69 $ 166 $ 278
Selling, general and administrative 687 877 2,405 3,391
Research and development 200 276 397 1,001

Share-based compensation expense before tax 943 1,222 2,968 4,670
Income taxes �  �  �  �  

Net compensation expense $ 943 $ 1,222 $ 2,968 $ 4,670

The following table sets forth the weighted-average key assumptions and fair value results for stock options granted during the three and nine
months ended March 31, 2010 and 2009:

Three Months Ended
March 31,

Nine Months Ended
March 31,

2010 2009 2010 2009
Weighted-average fair value of options granted $ �  (*) $ 3.67 $ 7.17 $ 3.68
Option life(1) �  (*) 5.5 years 5 years 5.5 years
Risk-free interest rate(2) �  (*) 1.5% 2.4% 2.4% 
Stock volatility(3) �  (*) 77% 87% 64% 
Dividend rate �  (*) 0% 0% 0% 

The following table sets forth the weighted-average key assumptions and fair value results for employees� stock purchase rights during the three
and nine months ended March 31, 2010 and 2009:

Three Months Ended
March 31,

Nine Months Ended
March 31,

2010 2009 2010 2009
Weighted-average fair value of stock
purchase rights granted $ 3.45 $ 3.19 $ 3.80 $ 3.04
Option life(1) 6 months 6 months 6 months 6 months
Risk-free interest rate(2) 0.2% 0.3% 0.3% 1.4% 
Stock volatility(3) 53% 122% 82% 105% 
Dividend rate 0% 0% 0% 0% 

(1) The option life was determined based upon historical option activity.
(2) The risk-free interest rate for each grant is equal to the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of grant for instruments with a

similar expected life.
(3)
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The stock volatility for each grant is measured using the weighted average of historical daily price changes of the Company�s common
stock over the most recent period equal to the expected option life of the grant, the historical short-term trend of the option and other
factors, such as expected changes in volatility arising from planned changes in the Company�s business operations.

(*) No stock options were granted by the Company during the three months ended March 31, 2010. The Company granted 59 restricted stock
awards during the three months ended March 31, 2010.
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E. Net Earnings (Loss) Per Share

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted net earnings (loss) per share:

Three Months Ended
March 31,

Nine Months Ended
March 31,

2010 2009 2010 2009
Income from continuing operations�basic $ 3,699 $ 4,702 $ 10,039 $ 4,838
Loss from discontinued operations (423) (704) (408) (19,696) 
Gain on sale of discontinued operations �  4,152 74 4,640

Net income (loss) $ 3,276 $ 8,150 $ 9,705 $ (10,218) 

Shares used in computation of net earnings (loss) per share�basic 22,627 22,208 22,509 22,113
Effect of dilutive stock options and restricted stock 525 278 412 261

Shares used in computation of net earnings (loss) per share�diluted 23,152 22,486 22,921 22,374

Net earnings (loss) per share�basic
Income from continuing operations $ 0.16 $ 0.21 $ 0.45 $ 0.22
Loss from discontinued operations (0.02) (0.03) (0.02) (0.89) 
Gain on sale of discontinued operations �  0.19 �  0.21

Net income (loss) $ 0.14 $ 0.37 $ 0.43 $ (0.46) 

Net earnings (loss) per share�diluted
Income from continuing operations $ 0.16 $ 0.21 $ 0.44 $ 0.22
Loss from discontinued operations (0.02) (0.03) (0.02) (0.88) 
Gain on sale of discontinued operations �  0.18 �  0.20

Net income (loss) $ 0.14 $ 0.36 $ 0.42 $ (0.46) 

Weighted average equity instruments to purchase 1,679 and 1,925 shares of common stock were not included in the calculation of diluted net
earnings per share for the three and nine months ended March 31, 2010, respectively, because the equity instruments were antidilutive. Weighted
average equity instruments to purchase 3,626 and 3,923 shares of common stock were not included in the calculation of diluted net earnings
(loss) per share for the three and nine months ended March 31, 2009, respectively, because the equity instruments were antidilutive.
Additionally, the 1,715 and 3,328 shares which represent the securities that were contingently issuable under the Company�s outstanding
Convertible Senior Notes (the �Notes�) were not included in the diluted net earnings (loss) per share for the three and nine months ended
March 31, 2009, respectively, because the equity instruments were antidilutive. The Notes were repurchased in full in fiscal 2009.

F. Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Total comprehensive income (loss) was as follows:

Three Months Ended
March 31,

Nine Months Ended
March 31,

2010 2009 2010 2009
Net income (loss) $ 3,276 $ 8,150 $ 9,705 $ (10,218) 
Other comprehensive income (loss):
Foreign currency translation adjustments 88 (525) 101 (2,906) 
Recognition of foreign currency gain �  (3,894) �  (3,894) 
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Change in unrealized gain (loss) on marketable securities �  41 (83) 3,109

Other comprehensive income (loss) 88 (4,378) 18 (3,691) 

Total comprehensive income (loss) $ 3,364 $ 3,772 $ 9,723 $ (13,909) 
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G. Marketable Securities

The Company�s investments consist mainly of student loan auction rate securities (�ARS�). The ARS are all highly rated investments with
AAA/Aaa ratings and are supported by the federal government as part of the Federal Family Education Loan Program and by private insurance
companies. The ARS have contractual terms from 30 to 40 years, but generally have interest rate reset dates that occur every seven to 30 days.
The auction mechanism generally allows existing investors to roll over their holdings and continue to own their securities or liquidate their
holdings by selling their securities at par value.

Beginning in mid-February 2008, auctions held for the ARS held by the Company failed. As a result, the Company was not able to access these
funds, and therefore, the ARS were determined to lack short-term liquidity and were classified as non-current in the consolidated balance sheet.
In October 2008, the Company received a rights offering from UBS (the �offering�) in which the Company elected to participate. By electing to
participate in the offering, the Company (1) received the right (�put option�) to sell these ARS back to UBS at par plus interest, at the Company�s
sole discretion, during a two-year period beginning on June 30, 2010, and (2) received an option to borrow up to 75% of the fair value of the
ARS held by the Company. Upon borrowing against the ARS, the Company forgoes the interest income on the underlying ARS while the
borrowings are outstanding and in return is not charged any interest expense. As the put option settlement date with UBS is within one year from
the March 31, 2010 balance sheet date, and the Company intends to exercise the put option on June 30, 2010, the Company has classified the fair
value of the ARS as current marketable securities. Following the repurchases of $12,175 of ARS by UBS at par value during the nine months
ended March 31, 2010, the ARS had a par value of approximately $37,875 at March 31, 2010.

At the time of the rights offering, the Company elected to measure the put option under the fair value option of FASB ASC 825-10 (�FASB ASC
825-10�), Financial Instruments, previously SFAS No. 159, and recorded income of $5,030, pre-tax, in fiscal 2009. The Company also
transferred these ARS from available-for-sale to trading investment securities. As a result of this transfer, the Company recognized an
impairment loss of $5,073, pre-tax, in fiscal 2009. The recording of the put option and the recognition of the impairment loss resulted in an
immaterial impact to the consolidated statement of operations for fiscal 2009. The put option will continue to be measured at fair value utilizing
Level 3 inputs, as described in FASB ASC 820 (�FASB ASC 820�), Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures, previously SFAS 157, until the
earlier of its maturity or exercise (see Note H). Consistent with the ARS, the Company reclassified the put option from a non-current asset to
current as of June 30, 2009. In accordance with FASB ASC 820, the Company re-measured the value of the put option at March 31, 2010. The
resulting valuation decreased the put option�s value by $927 and $1,216 during the three and nine months ended March 31, 2010, respectively.
The difference between the change in value of the put option and the change in value of the ARS resulted in an immaterial impact to the
consolidated statement of operations for the three and nine months ended March 31, 2010. The following table summarizes the marketable
securities of the Company as of March 31, 2010 and June 30, 2009:

Amortized
Cost

Gross
Recognized

Gains

Gross
Recognized

Losses

Fair
Market
Value

Trading Securities
MARCH 31, 2010
Short-term marketable securities:
Auction rate securities $ 37,894 $ �  $ (3,837) $ 34,057

JUNE 30, 2009
Short-term marketable securities:
Auction rate securities $ 50,062 $ �  $ (5,085) $ 44,977

The Company�s investments in marketable securities consisted entirely of ARS with maturities upwards of 40 years; however, as a result of the
put option noted above, the anticipated liquidation of these securities will occur less than one year from March 31, 2010. For the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2009, realized gains and losses from the sale of available-for-sale securities were immaterial.
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H. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company measures at fair value certain financial assets and liabilities, including cash equivalents, restricted cash and ARS. FASB ASC 820
specifies a hierarchy of valuation techniques based on whether the inputs to those valuation techniques are observable or unobservable.
Observable inputs reflect market data obtained from independent sources, while unobservable inputs reflect the Company�s market assumptions.
These two types of inputs have created the following fair-value hierarchy:

Level 1�Quoted prices for identical instruments in active markets;

Level 2�Quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in markets that are not active,
and model-derived valuations in which all significant inputs and significant value drivers are observable in active markets; and

Level 3�Valuations derived from valuation techniques in which one or more significant inputs or significant value drivers are unobservable.

The following table summarizes the fair value measurements as of March 31, 2010 for the Company�s financial instruments, including its ARS:

Fair Value Measurements
March 31,

2010 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets:
Money market funds $ 50,886 $ 50,886 $ �  $ �  
Restricted cash 3,000 3,000 �  �  
Auction rate securities 34,057 �  �  34,057
Put option to sell auction rate securities 3,814 �  �  3,814

Total $ 91,757 $ 53,886 $ �  $ 37,871

The fair values of the Company�s cash equivalents and restricted cash are determined through market, observable and corroborated sources. The
volume and level of activity for these sources has been determined to be sufficient primarily due to the market being active, the quantity of
recent transactions, pricing being current and no significant recent increases to certain risk factors, and as such, no adjustments to these sources
were needed. The following table provides a rollforward of the fair value of the Company�s ARS and put option, whose fair values were
determined by Level 3 inputs:

Fair Value
Balance at June 30, 2008 $ 47,231
Recognition of change in put option value in other net income 5,030
Realized losses included in other net income (5,073) 
Redemption of ARS (222) 
Change in temporary valuation adjustment included in comprehensive income 3,041

Balance at June 30, 2009 $ 50,007
Recognition of change in put option value in other net income (1,216) 
Realized gains included in other net income 1,255
Redemption of ARS (12,175) 

Balance at March 31, 2010 $ 37,871

The carrying values of the ARS and related put option reflect changes in the fair value of the underlying securities, which is based on Level 3
unobservable inputs. These unobservable inputs consist of fair values that are provided by the Company�s broker, which are corroborated by a
discounted cash flow analysis that the
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Company performs. The significant assumptions used by the Company in its analysis include interest rate spreads, credit quality, liquidity
premiums and other inputs that are current as of the measurement date, including during periods of market dislocations, such as the illiquidity in
the ARS market since February 2008. When performing this analysis the Company notes and analyzes for reasonableness any changes in
assumptions. Factors that could cause assumptions to change include fluctuations in consumer confidence, which can vary the Company�s credit
risk discount factor and cause changes to other rates used in the analysis, including the 3-month LIBOR rate. Since the October 2008 election to
participate in the rights offering, there have been no material changes in the assumptions used by the Company in its discounted cash flow
analysis.

I. Inventory

Inventory is stated at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out) or market value, and consists of materials, labor and overhead. On a quarterly basis, the
Company uses consistent methodologies to evaluate inventory for net realizable value. The Company reduces the value of inventory for excess
and obsolete inventory, consisting of on-hand and non-cancelable on-order inventory in excess of estimated usage. The excess and obsolete
inventory evaluation is based upon assumptions about future demand, product mix and possible alternative uses. Inventory was comprised of the
following:

March 31,
2010

June 30,
2009

Raw materials $ 6,217 $ 5,991
Work in process 5,591 6,240
Finished goods 8,251 4,574

Total $ 20,059 $ 16,805

There are no amounts in inventory relating to contracts having production cycles longer than one year.

J. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consisted of the following:

March 31,
2010

June 30,
2009

Computer equipment and software $ 49,073 $ 64,954
Furniture and fixtures 6,788 6,800
Building and leasehold improvements 655 597
Machinery and equipment 2,635 2,084

59,151 74,435
Less: accumulated depreciation and amortization (49,880) (66,475) 

$ 9,271 $ 7,960

In the three and nine months ended March 31, 2010, the Company retired $9,458 and $20,310, respectively, of fully depreciated computer
equipment and software assets that were no longer in use by the Company. This retirement was part of an on-going effort by the Company to
review and identify all assets that are still in use by the Company, and to retire those that are not.

Depreciation and amortization expense related to property and equipment for the three and nine months ended March 31, 2010 was $1,312 and
$3,790, respectively. Depreciation and amortization expense related to property and equipment for the three and nine months ended March 31,
2009 was $1,363 and $4,303, respectively.
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K. Operating Segments, Significant Customers and Geographic Information

Operating segments are defined as components of an enterprise evaluated regularly by the Company�s senior management in deciding how to
allocate resources and assess performance. Following the discontinuation and sale of the Biotech business, the VI business and the VSG
business, the Company was reorganized into two business units. These reportable segments were determined based upon the nature of the
products offered to customers, the market characteristics of each operating segment and the Company�s management structure:

� Advanced Computing Solutions (�ACS�). This business unit is focused on specialized, high performance computing
solutions with key market segments, including aerospace and defense, semiconductor, and commercial computing. This
segment also provides software and customized design services to meet the specified requirements of military and
commercial applications.

� Mercury Federal Systems (�MFS�). Formerly referred to as the �Emerging Business Unit� segment, this business unit has historically
been focused on the cultivation of new business opportunities that benefit from the Company�s capabilities across markets. Following
the sale of the Biotech business and the shutdown of the Avionics and Unmanned Systems Group (�AUSG�) reporting unit, this
business unit now solely consists of the Company�s wholly-owned subsidiary, Mercury Federal Systems, Inc. As such, beginning in
the first quarter of fiscal 2010, this segment was renamed �Mercury Federal Systems (MFS)�. Current areas of focus include services
and support work with the Department of Defense and federal intelligence and homeland security agencies, including designing and
engineering new ISR capabilities to address present and emerging threats to U.S. forces.

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as those described in �Note B: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies.� The
profitability measure employed by the Company and its chief operating decision maker for making decisions about allocating resources to
segments and assessing segment performance is income (loss) from operations prior to stock compensation expense. As such, stock-based
compensation expense has been excluded from each operating segments� income (loss) from operations below and reported separately to
reconcile the reported segment income (loss) from operations to the consolidated operating income reported in the consolidated statements of
operations. Additionally, asset information by reportable segment is not reported because the Company does not produce such information
internally. The following is a summary of the performance of the Company�s operations by reportable segment:

ACS MFS

Stock
Compensation

Expense Eliminations Total
THREE MONTHS ENDED

    MARCH 31, 2010
Net revenues to unaffiliated customers $ 41,152 $ 2,315 $ �  $ 136 $ 43,603
Intersegment revenues 1,001 �  �  (1,001) �  

Net revenues $ 42,153 $ 2,315 $ �  $ (865) $ 43,603

Income (loss) from operations $ 2,625 $ (332) $ (943) $ (198) $ 1,152
Depreciation and amortization expense $ 1,739 $ 7 $ �  $ �  $ 1,746
THREE MONTHS ENDED

    MARCH 31, 2009
Net revenues to unaffiliated customers $ 48,677 $ 1,886 $ �  $ �  $ 50,563
Intersegment revenues 736 78 �  (814) �  

Net revenues $ 49,413 $ 1,964 $ �  $ (814) $ 50,563

Income (loss) from operations $ 5,891 $ 116 $ (1,222) $ (41) $ 4,744
Depreciation and amortization expense $ 1,855 $ 6 $ �  $ �  $ 1,861
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ACS MFS

Stock
Compensation

Expense Eliminations Total
NINE MONTHS ENDED

    MARCH 31, 2010
Net revenues to unaffiliated customers $ 127,592 $ 8,464 $ �  $ 136 $ 136,192
Intersegment revenues 3,594 336 �  (3,930) �  

Net revenues $ 131,186 $ 8,800 $ �  $ (3,794) $ 136,192

Income (loss) from operations $ 11,257 $ 30 $ (2,968) $ (198) $ 8,121
Depreciation and amortization expense $ 5,071 $ 21 $ �  $ �  $ 5,092
NINE MONTHS ENDED

    MARCH 31, 2009
Net revenues to unaffiliated customers $ 137,247 $ 3,250 $ �  $ �  $ 140,497
Intersegment revenues 791 219 �  (1,010) �  

Net revenues $ 138,038 $ 3,469 $ �  $ (1,010) $ 140,497

Income (loss) from operations $ 10,725 $ (817) $ (4,670) $ (59) $ 5,179
Depreciation and amortization expense $ 6,239 $ 19 $ �  $ �  $ 6,258
The geographic distribution of the Company�s revenues from continuing operations is summarized as follows:

US Europe Asia Pacific Eliminations Total
THREE MONTHS ENDED

    MARCH 31, 2010
Net revenues to unaffiliated customers $ 38,466 $ 2,807 $ 2,330 $ �  $ 43,603
Inter-geographic revenues 4,546 191 17 (4,754) �  

Net revenues $ 43,012 $ 2,998 $ 2,347 $ (4,754) $ 43,603

THREE MONTHS ENDED

    MARCH 31, 2009
Net revenues to unaffiliated customers $ 46,933 $ 3,080 $ 550 $ �  $ 50,563
Inter-geographic revenues 2,574 307 42 (2,923) �  

Net revenues $ 49,507 $ 3,387 $ 592 $ (2,923) $ 50,563

NINE MONTHS ENDED

    MARCH 31, 2010
Net revenues to unaffiliated customers $ 121,455 $ 7,157 $ 7,580 $ �  $ 136,192
Inter-geographic revenues 10,601 311 152 (11,064) �  

Net revenues $ 132,056 $ 7,468 $ 7,732 $ (11,064) $ 136,192

NINE MONTHS ENDED

    MARCH 31, 2009
Net revenues to unaffiliated customers $ 132,132 $ 6,715 $ 1,650 $ �  $ 140,497
Inter-geographic revenues 5,952 743 226 (6,921) �  

Net revenues $ 138,084 $ 7,458 $ 1,876 $ (6,921) $ 140,497

Foreign revenue is based on the country in which the Company�s legal subsidiary is domiciled.
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The geographic distribution of the Company�s long-lived assets from continuing operations is summarized as follows:

US Europe Asia Pacific Eliminations Total
March 31, 2010 $ 12,369 $ 24 $ 664 $ �  $ 13,057
June 30, 2009 $ 10,906 $ 45 $ 620 $ �  $ 11,571
Identifiable long-lived assets exclude deferred tax accounts, goodwill, intangible assets and investments in other entities.

Customers comprising 10% or more of the Company�s revenues for the periods shown below are as follows:

Three Months Ended
March 31,

Nine Months Ended
March 31,

2010 2009 2010 2009
Customer A 27.4% 10.2% 25.6% 12.1% 
Customer B * 11.4 11.5 14.5
Customer C * 17.2 * 13.8
Customer D * 11.5 * *

27.4% 50.3% 37.1% 40.4% 

* Indicates that the amount is less than 10% of the Company�s revenues for the respective period.
Although the Company typically has several customers from which it derives 10% or more of its revenue, the sales to each of these customers
are spread across multiple programs and platforms. In the three months ended March 31, 2010, only one program individually comprised 10% or
more of the Company�s revenues, the JSF Radar program at 14%. In the nine months ended March 31, 2010, there were no programs that
individually comprised 10% or more of the Company�s revenues.

L. Goodwill and Acquired Intangible Assets

The carrying amount of goodwill at March 31, 2010 and June 30, 2009 was $57,653. In the nine months ended March 31, 2010, there were no
triggering events, as defined by FASB ASC 350, which required an interim goodwill impairment test. The Company performs its annual
goodwill impairment test in the fourth quarter of each fiscal year.

The Company determines its reporting units in accordance with FASB ASC 350 by assessing whether discrete financial information is available
and if management regularly reviews the operating results of that component. Following this assessment, the Company determined that its
reporting units are the same as its operating segments, which, following the divestiture of the VI and VSG operating segments, includes the ACS
and the MFS operating segments. As of June 30, 2009, ACS was the only reporting unit that had a goodwill balance, and as such, the annual
impairment analysis was performed for this reporting unit only.

The Company tests goodwill for impairment annually by evaluating the fair value of the reporting unit as compared to the book value. If the
book value of the reporting unit exceeds its fair value, the implied fair value of goodwill is compared with the carrying amount of goodwill. If
the carrying amount of goodwill exceeds the implied fair value, an impairment loss is recorded in an amount equal to that excess. For fiscal
2009, this evaluation was performed in the Company�s fourth quarter. The evaluation was performed consistent with prior years and relied on a
discounted cash flow analysis, which was corroborated by two market-based analyses: one evaluated guideline companies; and another that
reviewed comparable transactions. For each analysis performed,
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the fair value of the reporting unit was deemed to be in excess of the book value. The Company also compared the fair value per the discounted
cash flow analysis to the Company�s market capitalization, noting the market capitalization was greater than the fair value of the reporting unit.
As such, as of June 30, 2009, goodwill was determined to be appropriately valued, and no impairment charge was recorded.

Acquired intangible assets consisted of the following:

Gross
Carrying
Amount

Accumulated
Amortization

Net
Carrying
Amount

Average
Useful
Life

MARCH 31, 2010
Completed technology $ 14,030 $ (14,030) $ �  3.2 years
Customer relationships 7,270 (6,617) 653 5.2 years
Licensing agreements, trademarks and patents 3,300 (2,745) 555 5.0 years
Non-compete agreements 500 (159) 341 5.0 years

$ 25,100 $ (23,551) $ 1,549

JUNE 30, 2009
Completed technology $ 14,030 $ (14,021) $ 9 3.2 years
Customer relationships 7,270 (5,585) 1,685 5.2 years
Licensing agreements, trademarks and patents 3,506 (2,700) 806 4.6 years
Non-compete agreements 500 (89) 411 5.0 years

$ 25,306 $ (22,395) $ 2,911

The Company impaired $61 of a licensing agreement which was terminated during the three months ended March 31, 2010.

Estimated future amortization expense for acquired intangible assets remaining at March 31, 2010 is $409 for fiscal 2010, $565 for fiscal 2011,
$256 for fiscal 2012, $256 for fiscal 2013, and $63 for fiscal 2014.

M. Debt

Debt consisted of the following:

March 31,
2010

June 30,
2009

Borrowings under line of credit $ 24,932 $ 33,364
Capital lease obligations 154 46
Less: current portion (24,984) (33,408) 

Total non-current capital lease obligations $ 102 $ 2

Borrowings Under Line of Credit

In October 2008, the Company received a rights offering from UBS (the �offering�) in which the Company has elected to participate. By electing
to participate in the offering, the Company (1) received the right to sell the ARS back to UBS at par plus interest, at the Company�s sole
discretion, during a two-year period beginning on June 30, 2010, and (2) received an option to borrow up to 75% of the fair value of the ARS at
no cost. Upon borrowing against the ARS, the Company would forgo the interest income on the underlying ARS, while the borrowings are
outstanding. The line of credit included in the offering replaced the Company�s previous margin loan facility with UBS. As of March 31, 2010,
the Company had $24,932 outstanding against this line of credit, collateralized by the $37,875 par value of the ARS.
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Senior Secured Credit Facility

On February 12, 2010, the Company entered into a loan and security agreement (the �Loan Agreement�) with Silicon Valley Bank (the �Lender�).
The Loan Agreement provides for a $15,000 revolving line of credit (the �Revolver�) and a $20,000 acquisition line (the �Term Loan�). The
Revolver is available for borrowing during a two-year period, with interest payable monthly and the principal due at the February 11, 2012
maturity of the Revolver. The Term Loan is available for up to three separate borrowings, with total borrowings not to exceed $20,000, until
February 11, 2012. The Term Loan has interest payments only through the August 1, 2010 payment date, and converts to interest and principal
payments starting on the September 1, 2010 payment date through the February 11, 2014 maturity of the Term Loan. As of March 31, 2010,
there were no borrowings against the Revolver and Term Loans.

The Loan Agreement bears interest, at the Company�s option, at a rate per annum equal to either: (i) the prime rate minus 0.25% to plus 0.25%;
or (ii) the LIBOR rate plus 2.75% to 3.25% (in each case, based on the Company�s consolidated leverage ratio at the time of borrowing). For
prime rate borrowings, the prime rate shall be the greater of: (i) 4.00%; or (ii) the Lender�s prime rate. The Company may not have LIBOR credit
extensions having more than four different interest periods outstanding at any point in time. The Company is required to pay a fee on the daily
unused portion of the Loan Agreement of 0.30% per annum. Borrowings under the Revolver are available for letters of credit, cash management
services, working capital, general business purposes and foreign exchange. Borrowings under the Term Loan are available to fund acquisitions.

Borrowings under the Loan Agreement are secured by a first-priority security interest in all of the Company�s domestic assets (other than the
Company�s ARS), including intellectual property, but limited to 65% of the voting stock of foreign subsidiaries. The Company�s MFS subsidiary
is a guarantor and has granted a security interest in its assets in favor of the Lender. The Lender may require Mercury Computer Systems
Limited, the Company�s United Kingdom subsidiary, or Nihon Mercury Computer Systems, K.K., the Company�s Japanese subsidiary, to provide
guarantees in the future if the cash or assets of such subsidiary exceed specified levels.

The Loan Agreement provides for conventional affirmative and negative covenants, including a minimum quick ratio of 1.5 to 1.0. If the
Company has less than $10,000 of cash equivalents in accounts with the Lender in excess of the Company�s borrowings under the Loan
Agreement, the Company must also satisfy a $15,000 minimum trailing-four-quarter cash-flow covenant. The minimum cash flow covenant is
calculated as the Company�s trailing-four quarter adjusted EBITDA (as defined in the Loan Agreement; EBITDA adjusted to add back non-cash
stock compensation expenses and other one-time non-cash expenses as approved by the Lender), minus the Company�s capital expenditures
during such period, and minus taxes paid by the Company in cash during such period. In addition, the Loan Agreement contains certain
customary representations and warranties and limits the Company�s and its subsidiaries� ability to incur liens, dispose of assets, carry out certain
mergers and acquisitions, make investments and capital expenditures and defines events of default and limitations on the Company and its
subsidiaries to incur additional debt. The Loan Agreement requires the Company to exercise the put option for its ARS within 30 days of
June 30, 2010, and to use the proceeds from the ARS to pay off the Company�s outstanding borrowings under the Company�s existing ARS credit
facility with UBS.

The Company was in compliance with all covenants in the Loan Agreement as of March 31, 2010.

N. Commitments and Contingencies

LEGAL CLAIMS

The Company is subject to legal proceedings, claims and tax audits that arise in the ordinary course of business. The Company does not believe
the outcome of these matters will have a material adverse effect on its financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

INDEMNIFICATION OBLIGATIONS

The Company�s standard product sales and license agreements entered into in the ordinary course of business typically contain an
indemnification provision pursuant to which the Company indemnifies, holds
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harmless, and agrees to reimburse the indemnified party for losses suffered or incurred by the indemnified party in connection with any patent,
copyright or other intellectual property infringement claim by any third party with respect to the Company�s products. Such provisions generally
survive termination or expiration of the agreements. The potential amount of future payments the Company could be required to make under
these indemnification provisions is, in some instances, unlimited.

In connection with the divestitures of the Company�s former VI, VSG, Biotech and ES/PS businesses, the Company provided indemnification to
the buyers of the respective businesses. The Company�s indemnification obligations generally cover the buyers for damages resulting from
breaches of representations, warranties and covenants contained in the applicable purchase and sale agreement and generally cover pre-closing
tax liabilities of the divested businesses. In addition, the Company agreed to indemnify the buyer of the VI business for certain post-closing
employee severance expenses. The total paid to the buyer under this obligation was $344. As of March 31, 2010, this employee severance
obligation is considered closed. The Company�s indemnification obligations regarding the divested businesses are generally subject to caps on
the Company�s obligations.

GUARANTEES

As part of the sale of the VSG business reported as discontinued operations in fiscal 2009, the Company made certain guarantees to the buyer in
regards to retention bonuses to be paid by the buyer if certain VSG employees remain employed with the buyer in accordance with the terms of
their severance agreements, typically six months from the closing date. The Company estimated the obligation against this guarantee to be
approximately $730 and accrued this amount as of June 30, 2009. The Company settled this obligation in December 2009, upon the remittance
of $715 to the buyer. As of December 31, 2009, this retention bonus obligation was closed.

PURCHASE COMMITMENTS

The Company�s purchase obligations typically represent open non-cancelable purchase commitments for certain inventory components and
services used in normal operations. At March 31, 2010, the purchase commitments covered by these agreements were for less than one year and
aggregated approximately $27,916.

In September 2006, the Company entered into a supply agreement with a third-party vendor to purchase certain inventory parts that went �end of
life.� This supply agreement, as subsequently amended, commits the vendor to acquiring and storing approximately $6,500 of inventory until
August 31, 2012 and allows the Company to place orders for the inventory four times a year. Upon the earlier of January 31, 2007 or completion
of the wafer fabrication process, the Company was required to and paid approximately $1,900 of the $6,500. Further, upon expiration of the
agreement on August 31, 2012, if the Company does not purchase the full $6,500 in inventory, it may be required to pay a penalty equal to 35%
of the remaining inventory balance. As of March 31, 2010, the remaining minimum commitment related to this agreement was $1,795, which is
the 35% penalty on the remaining inventory balance.

O. Shareholders� Equity

The Company may reacquire shares in connection with the surrender of shares to cover the minimum taxes on vesting of restricted stock. During
the three and nine months ended March 31, 2010, 5 and 41 shares were reacquired, respectively, for a total cost of $61 and $428, respectively,
while 17 and 58 shares were reacquired during the three and nine months ended March 31, 2009, respectively, for a total cost of $107 and $404,
respectively. Effective May 1, 2010, the Company discontinued the net share settlement practice for settling restricted stock awards.

P. Discontinued Operations

In June 2009, the Company closed on the sale of the VSG operating segment for gross consideration of $12,000 in cash. The sale resulted in a
gain of $6,406 on disposal of the discontinued operation. The gain was
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primarily comprised of cash proceeds of $8,231, net of transaction costs, and recognition of a cumulative foreign currency translation gain of
$1,560, offset by net assets of approximately $3,385. There were no material adjustments to the gain on disposal during the three and nine
months ended March 31, 2010.

In January 2009, the Company completed the sale of the VI operating segment for gross consideration of $3,000 in cash. Of the proceeds, a total
of $1,100 was held back for general indemnification purposes and employee termination payments incurred by the buyer. Of the total held back,
$344 was used for termination payments, $423 was used for general indemnification purposes and $333 was remitted back to the Company. The
sale resulted in a gain of $4,207 on disposal of the discontinued operation. The gain was primarily comprised of expected cash proceeds, net of
transaction costs, of $990 and the recognition of a cumulative foreign currency translation gain of $3,894, offset by net assets of the business of
approximately $780. There were no material adjustments to the gain on disposal during the nine months ended March 31, 2010. In December
2008, the Company was required to perform an interim impairment test of goodwill and long-lived assets as a result of a triggering event: the
Company�s perceived decline in the market value for the VI business. Based on this interim evaluation, the carrying amount of goodwill in the VI
operating segment exceeded the implied fair value, resulting in a goodwill impairment charge of $13,016. In December 2008, the Company also
recorded an impairment of the customer relationships intangible asset within the VI operating segment of $1,539.

In September 2008, the Company completed an asset sale of the Biotech business for a $130 cash payment, which was received in the second
quarter of fiscal 2009, and $300 of preferred shares in the acquiring entity. The Biotech business was previously reported in the results of the
MFS operating segment, formerly referred to as the Emerging Business Unit. The sale resulted in a gain of $328 on disposal of the discontinued
operation.

In accordance with FASB ASC 360, VSG, VI and Biotech have been reflected as discontinued operations for all periods presented in the
Company�s consolidated financial statements, except the consolidated statements of cash flows. Accordingly, the revenue, costs, expenses, assets
and liabilities of VSG, VI and Biotech have been reported separately in the consolidated statements of operations and consolidated balance
sheets for all periods presented. The results of discontinued operations do not reflect any interest expense or any allocation of corporate general
and administrative expense.

The amounts reported in income (loss) from discontinued operations were as follows:

Three Months Ended
March 31,

Nine Months Ended
March 31,

2010 2009 2010 2009
VSG
Revenue $ �  $ 2,737 $ �  $ 8,142
(Loss) income from discontinued operations before income taxes �  (98) (4) 1,163
VI
Revenue $ �  $ 648 $ �  $ 5,133
(Loss) income from discontinued operations before income taxes �  (718) 36 (20,228) 
Biotech
Loss from discontinued operations before income taxes $ �  $ �  $ �  $ (743) 
The amounts reported as liabilities of the discontinued operations were as follows:

March 31,
2010

June 30,
2009

Accrued expenses, compensation and warranty $ 23 $ 1,207
Deferred revenue �  27

Liabilities of discontinued operations $ 23 $ 1,234
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Q. Income Tax (Benefit) Expense

The tax effect of temporary differences, primarily asset reserves and accrued liabilities, give rise to the Company�s deferred tax assets in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets; however, as management has determined that it is more likely than not that the domestic deferred tax
assets would not be realized due to uncertainties surrounding the timing and amounts of future taxable income, a valuation allowance has been
recorded.

The Company has a full valuation allowance on its remaining deferred tax assets as the Company does not believe that it has met the �more likely
than not� realization criteria under FASB ASC 740 Income Taxes (�FASB ASC 740�), previously SFAS No. 109. The Company will continue to
monitor available information in determining whether there is sufficient evidence to consider releasing some or all of the valuation allowance.
Should the Company determine any portion of the valuation allowance is no longer required, a tax benefit would be recorded in the financial
period of the change in determination.

The Company recorded a tax benefit for the three months ended March 31, 2010 of $2,235 on income from continuing operations before taxes of
$1,464 as compared to $101 of tax expense on income from continuing operations before taxes of $4,803 during the same period in fiscal 2009.
The Company recorded a tax benefit for the nine months ended March 31, 2010 of $999 on income from continuing operations before taxes of
$9,040 as compared to $101 of tax expense on income from continuing operations before taxes of $4,939 during the same period in fiscal 2009.
The tax benefits resulted from a change in the effective tax rate that resulted in a $500 benefit. In addition, during the third quarter the Company
had several favorable discrete items which included a $900 benefit from our 2009 tax return filing concerning our ability to utilize certain net
operating losses, a $400 decrease of our valuation allowance for uncertain tax positions, $300 due to the favorable settlement of issues regarding
our 2006 through 2008 tax return filings and $100 for other items.

As of March 31, 2010, the changes in the Company�s reserves for unrecognized income tax benefits were summarized as follows:

Nine Months Ended Years Ended June 30,
March 31, 2010     2009        2008    

Unrecognized tax benefits, beginning of period $ 1,069 $ 819 $ 582
Increases for previously recognized positions 1,012 568 185
Decreases for previously recognized positions (610) (390) (74) 
Increases for currently recognized positions 12 72 126

Unrecognized tax benefits, end of period $ 1,483 $ 1,069 $ 819

The increase in the nine months ended March 31, 2010 was primarily the result of an increase in unrecognized tax positions associated with
discontinued operations.

R. Restructuring Provision

In July 2009, the Company announced a restructuring plan within the ACS business unit (the �Q1 FY10 Plan�), which was enacted following the
completion of the Company�s divestitures as part of the Company�s reorganization of part of its business operations. The Company had a reversal
of $11 for unused outplacement costs in the three months ended March 31, 2010 and recorded an expense of $243 in the nine months ended
March 31, 2010 against this plan, which included severance costs associated with the elimination of four positions.

In fiscal 2008, the Company announced two restructuring plans, one within the ACS business unit (�ACS Plan�) and one within the former
Emerging Businesses Unit (�AUSG Plan�).
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The ACS Plan was enacted to reduce payroll and overhead costs to realign costs with the Company�s revenue base, particularly in regards to its
commercial portfolio. In fiscal 2009, this plan was amended to include an increase in restructuring expense of $1,675. This plan included
severance costs associated with the elimination of certain executive level positions and to shut down one of the Company�s California sites.

The AUSG Plan was enacted in March 2008 to reduce the financial losses of the AUSG reporting unit and was amended to include an additional
provision for restructuring charges in April 2008 following the shutdown of the AUSG reporting unit. A gross provision of $1,507 was recorded
during fiscal 2008, primarily due to the elimination of 12 positions. The AUSG Plan was amended in fiscal 2009 to include a provision of $37
for additional restructuring expense.

All of the restructuring charges are classified as operating expenses in the consolidated statements of operations and any remaining obligations
are expected to be paid within the next twelve months. The remaining restructuring liability is classified as accrued expenses in the consolidated
balance sheets.

The following table presents the detail of expenses by operating segment for the Company�s restructuring plans:

Severance Facilities Other Total
Restructuring liability at June 30, 2008 $ 2,184 $ 41 $ �  $ 2,225

ACS provision 1,532 �  143 1,675
MFS (EBU) provision �  37 �  37

Total provision 1,532 37 143 1,712
Cash paid (2,853) (43) (37) (2,933) 
Reversals and currency exchange impact (47) �  �  (47) 

Restructuring liability at June 30, 2009 $ 816 $ 35 $ 106 $ 957

ACS provision 253 �  19 272
Cash paid (851) (35) (96) (982) 
Reversals and currency exchange impact �  �  (29) (29) 

Restructuring liability at March 31, 2010 $ 218 $ �  $ �  $ 218

S. Related Party Transactions

In July 2008, the Company and the former CEO, James Bertelli, entered into an agreement for consulting services through June 30, 2010. The
consideration for these services totaled $190 and is being paid out over the service period. As of March 31, 2010, the Company had made
payments of $162 for consulting services under this agreement. Additionally, in July 2008, the Company entered into a five year non-compete
agreement with our former CEO. This agreement, which is carried as an intangible asset on the Company�s balance sheet, was valued at $500 and
is being amortized over the life of the agreement. As of March 31, 2010, the Company had made payments of $308 under this non-compete
agreement.

T. Subsequent Events

The Company has evaluated subsequent events from the date of the consolidated balance sheet through the date the financial statements were
issued. In April and May 2010, UBS repurchased $3,700 of the Company�s outstanding ARS, at par, from the Company, which was applied
against the outstanding ARS line of credit. The combination of the fair value of the ARS and corresponding put option approximates par value,
and therefore, no gain or loss was recognized upon repurchase. The Company�s outstanding loan balance with UBS has been reduced by the full
amount of the repurchase. In addition, the Company drew down the loan with UBS by $865 in May 2010.
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ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT�S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

From time to time, information provided, statements made by our employees or information included in our filings with the Securities and
Exchange Commission may contain statements that are not historical facts but that are �forward-looking statements,� which involve risks and
uncertainties. The words �may,� �will,� �should,� �plan,� �expect,� �anticipate,� �continue,� �estimate,� �project,� �intend,� and similar expressions are intended to
identify forward-looking statements regarding events, conditions and financials trends that may affect our future plans of operations, business
strategy, results of operations and financial position. These forward-looking statements, which include those related to our strategic plans,
business outlook, and future business and financial performance, involve risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ
materially from those projected or anticipated. Such risks and uncertainties include, but are not limited to, general economic and business
conditions, including unforeseen economic weakness in our markets, effects of continued geo-political unrest and regional conflicts,
competition, changes in technology and methods of marketing, delays in completing various engineering and manufacturing programs, changes
in customer order patterns, changes in product mix, continued success in technological advances and delivering technological innovations,
continued funding of defense programs and the timing of such funding, changes in the U.S. Government�s interpretation of federal procurement
rules and regulations, market acceptance of our products, shortages in components, production delays due to performance quality issues with
outsourced components, inability to fully realize the expected benefits from acquisitions and divestitures or delays in realizing such benefits,
challenges in integrating acquired businesses and achieving anticipated synergies, inability to identify opportunities to rationalize our business
portfolio in a timely manner or at all, difficulties in retaining key employees and customers, and various other factors beyond our control. These
risks and uncertainties also include such additional risk factors as set forth under Part I-Item 1A (Risk Factors) in the Company�s Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009. We caution readers not to place undue reliance upon any such forward-looking
statements, which speak only as of the date made. We undertake no obligation to update any forward-looking statement to reflect events or
circumstances after the date on which such statement is made.

OVERVIEW

We design, manufacture and market high-performance embedded, real-time digital signal and image processing systems and software for
embedded and other specialized computing markets. Our solutions play a critical role in a wide range of applications, transforming sensor data
to information for analysis and interpretation. In military reconnaissance and surveillance platforms, our systems process real-time radar, sonar
and signals intelligence data. Our systems are also used in semiconductor applications such as wafer inspection and fabrication. We also provide
radio frequency products for enhanced communications capabilities in military and commercial applications. Additionally, we entered the
defense prime contracting market space in fiscal 2008 through the creation of our wholly-owned subsidiary, MFS, to focus on reaching the
federal intelligence agencies and homeland security programs.

In June 2009, we closed on the sale of our former VSG operating segment for gross consideration of $12.0 million in cash.

In January 2009, we signed a definitive agreement and closed on the sale of our former VI operating segment for gross consideration of $3.0
million in cash. Of the proceeds, a total of $1.1 million was held back for general indemnification purposes and employee termination payments
incurred by the buyer. Of the total held back, $0.3 million was used for termination payments, $0.4 million was used for general indemnification
purposes and $0.3 million was remitted back to the Company.
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In September 2008, we closed on the sale of our former Biotech business for a $0.1 million cash payment, and $0.3 million of preferred shares in
the acquiring entity.

The accounting for these sales and the VSG and VI operating segments� operating results are included in discontinued operations for fiscal 2009
(see Note P to the consolidated financial statements).

Following the divestiture of those businesses, we have organized our operations into the following two business units:

Advanced Computing Solutions (�ACS�). This business unit is focused on specialized, high performance computing solutions with key market
segments, including aerospace and defense, semiconductor, and commercial computing. This segment also provides software and customized
design services to meet the specified requirements of military and commercial applications.

Mercury Federal Systems (MFS). Formerly referred to as the �Emerging Business Unit� segment, this business unit has historically been focused
on the cultivation of new business opportunities that benefit from our capabilities across markets. Following the sale of the Biotech business and
the shutdown of the Avionics and Unmanned Systems Group (�AUSG�) reporting unit, this business unit now solely consists of the Company�s
wholly-owned subsidiary, Mercury Federal Systems, Inc. As such, beginning in the first quarter of fiscal 2010, this segment was renamed
�Mercury Federal Systems (MFS)�. Current areas of focus include services and support work with the Department of Defense and federal
intelligence and homeland security agencies, including designing and engineering new ISR capabilities to address present and emerging threats
to U.S. forces.

Since we are an OEM supplier to our commercial markets and conduct business with our defense customers via commercial items, requests by
customers are a primary driver of revenue fluctuations from quarter to quarter. Customers specify delivery date requirements that coincide with
their need for our product. Because these customers may use our products in connection with a variety of defense programs or other projects
with different sizes and durations, a customer�s orders for one quarter generally do not indicate a trend for future orders by that customer.
Additionally, order patterns of one customer do not necessarily correlate with the order patterns of another customer and, therefore, we generally
cannot identify sequential quarterly trends, even within our business units.

During the third quarter of fiscal 2010, we identified errors totaling $0.4 million primarily related to deferred revenue, of which approximately
$0.1 million, $0.2 million, and $0.1 million understated income in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2009, and the first and second quarters of fiscal
2010, respectively. We recorded an increase in revenue of $0.1 million and a reduction to cost of goods sold of $0.3 million in the third quarter
of fiscal 2010 to adjust for the errors and correctly reflect the March 31, 2010 year-to-date period. Management has concluded that the impact of
these errors is not material to prior periods or the three and nine months ended March 31, 2010.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS:

The following tables set forth, for the periods indicated, certain financial data as a percentage of total revenues:

Three Months Ended
March 31,

Nine Months Ended
March 31,

2010 2009 2010 2009
Revenues 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 
Cost of revenues 43.1 42.3 42.7 43.4

Gross margin 56.9 57.7 57.3 56.6
Operating expenses:
Selling, general and administrative 28.8 24.9 27.4 27.5
Research and development 24.4 22.0 22.5 23.5
Impairment of long-lived assets 0.1 �  0.2 �  
Amortization of acquired intangible assets 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.4
Restructuring �  0.4 0.2 0.5

Total operating expenses 54.3 48.3 51.3 52.9

Income from operations 2.6 9.4 6.0 3.7
Other income (expense), net 0.8 0.1 0.6 (0.2) 

Income from continuing operations before income taxes 3.4 9.5 6.6 3.5
Income tax (benefit) expense (5.1) 0.2 (0.8) 0.1

Income from continuing operations 8.5 9.3 7.4 3.4
Loss from discontinued operations, net of taxes (1.0) (1.4) (0.3) (14.0) 
Gain on sale of discontinued operations, net of taxes �  8.2 �  3.3

Net income (loss) 7.5% 16.1% 7.1% (7.3)% 

THREE AND NINE MONTHS ENDED  MARCH 31, 2010 VS. THREE AND NINE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2009

REVENUES

(in thousands)

Three Months
Ended

March  31,
2010

As a % of
Total Net
Revenue

Three Months
Ended

March  31,
2009

As a % of
Total Net
Revenue $ Change % Change

ACS $ 41,152 95% $ 48,677 96% $ (7,525) (15.5)% 
MFS 2,315 5 1,886 4 429 22.7
Other 136 �  �  �  136 100

Total revenues $ 43,603 100% $ 50,563 100% $ (6,960) (13.8)% 

Total revenues decreased $7.0 million, or 13.8%, during the three months ended March 31, 2010 as compared to the same period in fiscal 2009.
International revenues represented approximately 11.8% and 7.2% of total revenues during the three months ended March 31, 2010 and 2009,
respectively.
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Net ACS revenues decreased $7.5 million, or 15.5%, during the three months ended March 31, 2010 as compared to the same period in fiscal
2009. This decrease was primarily driven by a $3.6 million reduction in sales to commercial customers, primarily relating to medical markets.
The decrease was also due to a reduction in sales to defense customers of $3.9 million, mostly driven by a decrease in sales to the electronic
warfare market.

Net MFS revenues increased $0.4 million during the three months ended March 31, 2010 as compared to the same period in fiscal 2009. This
change was primarily driven by a $1.3 million increase in revenue relating to a large ISR development program, offset by the completion of
other programs during the year.
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Net Other revenues increased $0.1 million during the three months ended March 31, 2010 as compared to the same period in fiscal 2009. This
increase is a result of revenues earned by the Company during the three months ended March 31, 2010 attributed to a development program,
which are not allocable to our two business units under contract accounting.

(in thousands)
Nine Months Ended

March 31, 2010

As a % of
Total Net
Revenue

Nine Months Ended
March 31, 2009

As a % of
Total Net
Revenue $ Change % Change

ACS $ 127,592 94% $ 137,247 98% $ (9,655) (7.0)% 
MFS 8,464 6 3,250 2 5,214 160
Other 136 �  �  �  136 100

Total revenues $ 136,192 100% $ 140,497 100% $ (4,305) (3.1)% 

Total revenues decreased $4.3 million, or 3.1%, during the nine months ended March 31, 2010 as compared to the same period in fiscal 2009.
International revenues represented approximately 10.8% and 6.0% of total revenues during the nine months ended March 31, 2010 and 2009,
respectively.

Net ACS revenues decreased $9.7 million, or 7.0%, to $127.6 million for the nine months ended March 31, 2010 as compared to the same period
in fiscal year 2009. This decrease was primarily driven by a $9.1 million reduction in sales to commercial customers, primarily relating to the
medical and semiconductor equipment markets. This decrease was also due to a decrease in sales to defense customers of $0.6 million, mostly
driven by a decrease in sales to the electronic warfare market.

Net MFS revenues increased $5.2 million during the nine months ended March 31, 2010 as compared to the same period in fiscal 2009. This
change was primarily driven by a $4.8 million increase in revenue relating to a large ISR development program.

Net Other revenues increased $0.1 million during the nine months ended March 31, 2010 as compared to the same period in fiscal 2009. This
increase is a result of revenues earned by the Company during the three months ended March 31, 2010 attributed to a development program,
which are not allocable to our two business units under contract accounting.

GROSS MARGIN

Gross margin was 56.9% for the three months ended March 31, 2010, a decrease of 80 basis points from the 57.7% gross margin achieved
during the same period in fiscal 2009. The decrease in gross margin was primarily due to an increase in service and systems integration revenue
as a percentage of overall revenue, which tends to carry lower gross margins.

Gross margin was 57.3% for the nine months ended March 31, 2010, an increase of 70 basis points from the 56.6% gross margin achieved
during the same period in fiscal 2009. The increase in gross margin was primarily due to a $3.6 million decrease in provisions for obsolete
inventory, a $2.9 million reduction in manufacturing costs due to improved efficiencies, a $1.5 million decrease in warranty expense and a $0.6
million decrease in scrap expenditures, as compared to the same period in fiscal 2009. This increase was partially offset by a decrease in direct
margin due to an unfavorable shift in product and business mix. Significant reserves for inventory obsolescence were booked in the nine months
ended March 31, 2009 largely due to lower demand in the commercial space.

SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE

Selling, general and administrative expenses decreased $0.1 million, or 0.4%, to $12.5 million during the three months ended March 31, 2010 as
compared to $12.6 million during the same period in fiscal 2009. While revenue decreased $7.0 million during the three months ended
March 31, 2010, selling, general and administrative expenses remained relatively flat primarily due to consistency in headcount.
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Selling, general and administrative expenses decreased $1.3 million, or 3.4%, to $37.4 million during the nine months ended March 31, 2010 as
compared to $38.7 million during the same period in fiscal 2009. The decrease was primarily due to a $0.7 million decrease in employee
compensation expense, including stock-based compensation expense, driven by awards with historically high valuations becoming fully vested
and being offset by new awards with lower valuations and an increase in our estimated forfeiture rate. Additionally, there was a $0.4 million
decrease in consultant fees, a $0.4 million decrease in audit expense and a $0.5 million decrease in external legal expense, offset by a $0.2
million increase in recruiting expense.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

Research and development expenses decreased $0.5 million, or 4.4%, to $10.6 million during the three months ended March 31, 2010 as
compared to $11.1 million during the same period in fiscal 2009. The decrease was primarily the result of a $1.6 million increase in the time
spent by our engineers on billable projects. This decrease was partially offset by a $0.6 million increase in employee compensation expense,
driven by a 14 person increase in headcount during the three months ended March 31, 2010 and a $0.4 million increase in outside development
expenses related to new product development initiatives. Research and development continues to be a focus of our business with approximately
24.4% of our revenues dedicated to research and development activities during the three months ended March 31, 2010 and approximately
22.0% of our revenues dedicated to such activities during the same period in fiscal 2009.

Research and development expenses decreased $2.3 million, or 6.9%, to $30.7 million during the nine months ended March 31, 2010 as
compared to $33.0 million during the same period in fiscal 2009. The decrease was primarily the result of a $4.1 million increase in the time
spent by our engineers on billable projects and a $0.3 million decrease in depreciation expense due to assets becoming fully depreciated. This
decrease was partially offset by a $1.1 million increase in employee compensation expense, driven by a 14 person increase in headcount, and a
$0.9 million increase in outside development expenses related to new product development initiatives. Research and development continues to
be a focus of our business with approximately 22.5% of our revenues dedicated to research and development activities during the nine months
ended March 31, 2010 and approximately 23.5% of our revenues dedicated to such activities during the same period in fiscal 2009. It is our
priority to continue to improve the leverage of our research and development investments in order to realize a more near-term return.

IMPAIRMENT OF LONG-LIVED ASSETS

Impairment of long-lived assets was $0.1 million and $0.2 million during the three and nine months ended March 31, 2010, respectively. These
charges were the result of the impairment of the remaining value of a terminated license during the three months ended March 31, 2010 and the
reduced expectation of the fair value for the shares we received as compensation in the sale of our Biotech business during the nine months
ended March 31, 2010.

There were no impairment charges recorded in the nine months ended March 31, 2009.

AMORTIZATION OF ACQUIRED INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Amortization of acquired intangible assets decreased $0.1 million to $0.4 million for the three months ended March 31, 2010 as compared to
$0.5 million during the same period in fiscal 2009. Amortization of acquired intangible assets decreased $0.7 million to $1.3 million for the nine
months ended March 31, 2010 as compared to $2.0 million during the same period in fiscal 2009. The decreases in both periods were primarily
attributable to assets becoming fully amortized.

RESTRUCTURING EXPENSE

Restructuring expense decreased $0.2 million to nil during the three months ended March 31, 2010 as compared to $0.2 million during the same
period in fiscal 2009. During the three months ended March 31, 2009, the restructuring charges primarily related to the elimination of four
positions and additional severance accruals

30

Edgar Filing: MERCURY COMPUTER SYSTEMS INC - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 43



Table of Contents

for our ACS Plan, which was enacted in fiscal 2008 to reduce payroll and overhead costs to realign costs with our revenue base. There were no
new restructuring events during the three months ended March 31, 2010.

Restructuring expense decreased $0.5 million to $0.2 million during the nine months ended March 31, 2010 as compared to $0.7 million during
the same period in fiscal 2009. Restructuring activities during the nine months ended March 31, 2010, were primarily due to the elimination of
four positions under the Q1 FY10 Plan, which was enacted following the completion of our divestitures as part of the reorganization of our
business operations. During the nine months ended March 31, 2009, the restructuring charges primarily related to the elimination of fifteen
positions and severance accruals for our ACS Plan, which was enacted in fiscal 2008 to reduce payroll and overhead costs and to realign
expenses with our revenue base.

INTEREST INCOME

Interest income remained relatively flat at $0.2 million during the three months ended March 31, 2010 and 2009. Interest income decreased by
$1.5 million to $0.4 million during the nine months ended March 31, 2010 as compared to the same period in fiscal 2009. The decreases during
the nine months ended March 31, 2010 were primarily attributable to decreased rates of return on our marketable securities, as well as a decrease
in the amount of cash invested in marketable securities as a result of the February 2009 and May 2009 repurchase of an aggregate of $125.0
million of our Convertible Senior Notes (the �Notes�).

INTEREST EXPENSE

Interest expense decreased $0.4 million to $0.1 million in the three months ended March 31, 2010 as compared to the same period in fiscal 2009.
Interest expense decreased $2.0 million to $0.3 million during the nine months ended March 31, 2010 as compared to the same period in fiscal
2009. The decreases during both periods were primarily due to lower interest incurred as a result of the repayment of our Notes in February 2009
and May 2009.

INCOME TAX BENEFIT / EXPENSE

We recorded a tax benefit of $2.2 million during the three months ended March 31, 2010 as compared to a $0.1 million expense during the same
period in fiscal 2009. Our effective tax rate for the three months ended March 31, 2010 differed from the U.S. statutory tax rate of 35% primarily
due to tax benefits resulting from a change in the effective tax rate that resulted in a $0.5 million benefit. In addition, during the third quarter we
had several favorable discrete items which included a $0.9 million benefit from our 2009 tax return filing concerning our ability to utilize certain
net operating losses, a $0.4 million decrease of our valuation allowance for uncertain tax positions, $0.3 million due to the favorable settlement
of issues regarding our 2006 through 2008 tax return filings and $0.1 million for other items.

We recorded a tax benefit of $1.0 million during the nine months ended March 31, 2010 as compared to a $0.1 million expense during the same
period in fiscal 2009. Our effective tax rate for the nine months ended March 31, 2010 differed from the U.S. statutory tax rate of 35% primarily
due to tax benefits resulting from a change in the effective tax rate that reduced tax expense to $0.7 million. In addition, during the third quarter
we had several favorable discrete items which included a $0.9 million benefit from our 2009 tax return filing concerning our ability to utilize
certain net operating losses, a $0.4 million decrease of our valuation allowance for uncertain tax positions, $0.3 million due to the favorable
settlement of issues regarding our 2006 through 2008 tax return filings and $0.1 million for other items.

SEGMENT OPERATING RESULTS

Operating profit for ACS decreased $3.3 million during the three months ended March 31, 2010 to $2.6 million as compared to $5.9 million for
the same period in fiscal 2009. This decrease was largely attributable to lower revenues and gross margin. The decrease in operating profit was
slightly offset by a reduction in operating expenses, primarily driven by a decrease in associate headcount as a result of fiscal 2009 restructuring
and cost savings efforts.
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Operating profit for ACS increased $0.3 million during the nine months ended March 31, 2010 to $11.1 million as compared to $10.8 million for
the same period in fiscal 2009. This improvement was largely attributable to a $3.6 million decrease in provisions for obsolete inventory, a $2.9
million reduction in manufacturing costs due to improved efficiencies, a $1.5 million decrease in warranty expense and a $0.6 million decrease
in scrap expenditures, as compared to the same period in fiscal 2009 and a reduction in operating expenses, primarily driven by a decrease in
associate headcount as a result of fiscal 2009 restructuring and cost savings efforts. This increase was offset by a decrease in revenue in the
commercial and electronic warfare markets.

Results from operations of the MFS segment decreased $0.4 million during the three months ended March 31, 2010 to an operating loss of $0.3
million as compared to an operating profit of $0.1 million for the same period in fiscal 2009. The decrease in results from operations was
primarily due to a decrease in gross margin due to a change in program mix. In addition, operating expenses increased $0.2 million relating to an
increase in MFS headcount.

Results from operations of the MFS segment increased $0.8 million during the nine months ended March 31, 2010 to break-even as compared to
an operating loss of $0.8 million for the same period in fiscal 2009. The increase in results from operations was primarily due to an increase in
revenue relating to an ISR development program.

See Note K to our Consolidated Financial Statements included in this report for more information regarding our operating segments.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

In connection with the divestitures of our former VI, VSG, Biotech and ES/PS businesses, we provided indemnification to the buyers of the
respective businesses. Our indemnification obligations generally cover the buyers for damages resulting from breaches of representations,
warranties and covenants contained in the applicable purchase and sale agreement and generally cover pre-closing tax liabilities of the divested
businesses. Our indemnification obligations regarding the divested businesses are generally subject to caps on our obligations.

Other than the indemnifications relating to the divestitures of our former VI, VSG, Biotech and ES/PS businesses, our lease commitments
incurred in the normal course of business and certain other indemnification provisions (see Note N to the consolidated financial statements), we
do not have any off-balance sheet financing arrangements or liabilities, guarantee contracts, retained or contingent interests in transferred assets,
or any obligation arising out of a material variable interest in an unconsolidated entity. We do not have any majority-owned subsidiaries that are
not consolidated in the financial statements. Additionally, we do not have an interest in, or relationships with, any special purpose entities.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

(in thousands)
Nine Months Ended

March 31,
2010 2009

Net cash provided by operating activities $ 12,295 $ 7,856
Net cash provided by investing activities 6,239 58,757
Net cash used in financing activities (6,900) (85,940) 
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 11,874 18,461

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Our cash and cash equivalents increased by $11.9 million from June 30, 2009 to March 31, 2010, primarily as the result of $12.3 million of cash
provided by operating activities, $12.2 million cash proceeds from sale of marketable securities and $1.3 million cash proceeds received from
employee stock plans, offset by the $8.4 million of payments to reduce our borrowings under our ARS line of credit with UBS and $4.9 million
in capital expenditures.
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Our cash and cash equivalents decreased by $18.5 million from June 30, 2008 to March 31, 2009, primarily as the result of the repurchase of
$119.7 million of our Notes and $3.2 million in capital expenditures, offset by $60.3 million of higher net sales of marketable securities, a $33.3
million borrowing against our ARS and $7.9 million of cash provided by operating activities.

During the nine months ended March 31, 2010, we generated $12.3 million in cash from operating activities compared to $7.9 million generated
from operating activities during the same period in fiscal 2009. The $4.4 million increase in cash generated from operations was largely driven
by a $19.9 million increase in net income, a $8.3 million increase due to an increase in accounts payable and accrued expenses, a $4.8 million
decrease due to a decrease in deferred revenue and other long-term liabilities and a $2.5 million decrease in cash due to an increase in accounts
receivable, offset by a $14.8 million decrease in non-cash gains and losses, a $8.4 million increase in cash used from inventory, a $4.2 million
decrease in cash due to an increase in prepaid expenses, a $3 million increase in cash paid for income taxes and a $0.5 million decrease in cash
generated from other assets. Our ability to generate cash from operations in future periods will depend in large part on profitability, the rate of
collection of accounts receivable, our inventory turns and our ability to manage other areas of working capital.

During the nine months ended March 31, 2010, we generated $6.2 million of cash from investing activities compared to $58.8 million provided
by investing activities during the same period in fiscal 2009. The $52.6 million decrease in cash provided by investing activities was primarily
driven by a $48.2 million decrease in cash generated from net sale of marketable securities, $1.8 million increase in capital expenditures, $1.6
increase in net cash used for sale of discontinuing operations and a $0.8 million decrease in proceeds from the redemption of life insurance
policies.

During the nine months ended March 31, 2010, we used $6.9 million cash in financing activities compared to $85.9 million during the same
period in fiscal 2009. The $79 million decrease in cash used in financing activities was primarily due to our February 4, 2009 repurchase of
$119.7 million (face value) aggregate principal amount of our Notes from the holder of such Notes, offset by $8.4 million of payments made
against our ARS line of credit during the nine months ended March 31, 2010 as compared to $33.3 million of borrowings under the ARS line of
credit in the comparable period in fiscal 2009. In October 2008, we received a rights offering from UBS (the �offering�) in which we elected to
participate. By electing to participate in the offering, we (1) received the right to sell these ARS back to UBS at par plus interest, at our sole
discretion, during a two-year period beginning on June 30, 2010, and (2) received an option to borrow up to 75% of the fair value of the ARS.
Upon borrowing against the ARS, we forgo the interest income on the underlying ARS while the borrowings are outstanding and in return are
not charged any interest expense. The line of credit included in the offering replaced our previous margin loan facility with UBS. As of
March 31, 2010, we had $24.9 million outstanding under this line of credit, collateralized by the $37.9 million par value of ARS.

During the nine months ended March 31, 2010, our primary source of liquidity came from existing cash and marketable securities, the cash
generated from operations and the $24.9 million borrowing under our ARS line of credit. Our near-term fixed commitments for cash
expenditures consist primarily of payments under operating leases, a supply agreement and inventory purchase commitments with our contract
manufacturers. We do not currently have any material commitments for capital expenditures.

Based on our current plans and business conditions, we believe that existing cash, cash equivalents, marketable securities, available line of credit
and cash generated from operations will be sufficient to satisfy our anticipated cash requirements for at least the next twelve months.

In April and May 2010, UBS repurchased $3.7 million of our outstanding ARS, at par, from us, which was applied against the outstanding ARS
line of credit. The combination of the fair value of the ARS and corresponding put option approximates par value, and therefore, no gain or loss
was recognized upon repurchase. Our outstanding loan balance with UBS has been reduced by the full amount of the repurchase. In addition, we
drew down the loan with UBS by $0.9 million in May 2010.
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Notes

On April 29, 2004, we completed a private offering of $125.0 million aggregate principal amount of Notes, which had an original maturity date
of May 1, 2024, bearing interest at 2% per year, payable semiannually in arrears in May and November. The Notes were unsecured, ranked
equally in right of payment to our existing and future unsecured senior debt, and did not subject us to any financial covenants.

On February 4, 2009, we repurchased $119.7 million (face value) aggregate principal amount of our Notes from a holder of such Notes. We
repurchased the Notes for aggregate consideration equal to the principal amount of the Notes plus accrued interest. We paid the consideration for
the Notes from a combination of cash on hand and the proceeds from the sale of certain U.S. Treasury securities held by us.

On May 1, 2009, we repurchased the remaining aggregate principal amount outstanding of $5.3 million (face value) of our Notes from the
holders of such Notes. We repurchased the Notes for aggregate consideration equal to the principal amount of the Notes plus accrued interest.
We paid the consideration for the Notes from cash on hand. We have no further obligations under the Notes.

Borrowings Under Line of Credit

In October 2008, we elected to participate in a rights offering from UBS with the option to borrow up to 75% of the fair value of our $37.9
million par value ARS. Upon borrowing against the ARS, the interest expense incurred by us will not exceed the interest income earned on the
underlying ARS. As of March 31, 2010, we had $24.9 million outstanding against this line of credit.

In April and May 2010, UBS repurchased $3.7 million of our outstanding ARS securities from us, which was applied against the outstanding
ARS line of credit. In addition, we drew down the loan with UBS by $0.9 million in May 2010.

Senior Secured Credit Facility

On February 12, 2010, we entered into a loan and security agreement (the �Loan Agreement�) with Silicon Valley Bank (the �Lender�). The Loan
Agreement provides for a $15.0 million revolving line of credit (the �Revolver�) and a $20.0 million acquisition line (the �Term Loan�). The
Revolver is available for borrowing during a two-year period, with interest payable monthly and the principal due at the February 11, 2012
maturity of the Revolver. The Term Loan is available for up to three separate borrowings, with total borrowings not to exceed $20.0 million,
until February 11, 2012. The Term Loan has interest payments only through the August 1, 2010 payment date, and converts to interest and
principal payments starting on the September 1, 2010 payment date through the February 11, 2014 maturity of the Term Loan. As of March 31,
2010, there were no borrowings against the Revolver and Term Loans.

The Loan Agreement bears interest, at our option, at a rate per annum equal to either: (i) the prime rate minus 0.25% to plus 0.25%; or (ii) the
LIBOR rate plus 2.75% to 3.25% (in each case, based on our consolidated leverage ratio at the time of borrowing). For prime rate borrowings,
the prime rate shall be the greater of: (i) 4.00%; or (ii) the Lender�s prime rate. We may not have LIBOR credit extensions having more than four
different interest periods outstanding at any point in time. We are required to pay a fee on the daily unused portion of the Loan Agreement of
0.30% per annum. Borrowings under the Revolver are available for letters of credit, cash management services, working capital, general
business purposes and foreign exchange. Borrowings under the Term Loan are available to fund acquisitions.

Borrowings under the Loan Agreement are secured by a first-priority security interest in all of our domestic assets (other than our ARS),
including intellectual property, but limited to 65% of the voting stock of foreign subsidiaries. Our MFS subsidiary is a guarantor and has granted
a security interest in its assets in favor of the Lender. The Lender may require Mercury Computer Systems Limited, our United Kingdom
subsidiary, or Nihon Mercury Computer Systems, K.K., our Japanese subsidiary, to provide guarantees in the future if the cash or assets of such
subsidiary exceed specified levels.
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The Loan Agreement provides for conventional affirmative and negative covenants, including a minimum quick ratio of 1.5 to 1.0. If we have
less than $10 million of cash equivalents in accounts with the Lender in excess of our borrowings under the Loan Agreement, we must also
satisfy a $15 million minimum trailing-four-quarter cash-flow covenant. The minimum cash flow covenant is calculated as our trailing-four
quarter adjusted EBITDA (as defined in the Loan Agreement; EBITDA adjusted to add back non-cash stock compensation expenses and other
one-time non-cash expenses as approved by the Lender), minus our capital expenditures during such period, and minus taxes paid by us in cash
during such period. In addition, the Loan Agreement contains certain customary representations and warranties and limits us and our subsidiaries�
ability to incur liens, dispose of assets, carry out certain mergers and acquisitions, make investments and capital expenditures and defines events
of default and limitations on us and our subsidiaries to incur additional debt. The Loan Agreement requires us to exercise the put option for our
ARS within 30 days of June 30, 2010, and to use the proceeds from the ARS to pay off our outstanding borrowings under our existing ARS
credit facility with UBS.

We were in compliance with all covenants in the Loan Agreement as of March 31, 2010.

Shelf Registration Statement

On April 28, 2009, we filed a shelf registration statement on Form S-3 with the SEC. The shelf registration statement, which has been declared
effective by the SEC, registered up to $100 million of debt securities, preferred stock, common stock, warrants and units. We may sell any
combination of these securities, either individually or in units, in one or more offerings. We intend to use the net proceeds from the sale of any
securities under the shelf registration statement for general corporate purposes, which may include the following:

� the acquisition of other companies or businesses;

� the repayment and refinancing of debt;

� capital expenditures;

� working capital; and

� other purposes as described in any prospectus supplement under the shelf registration statement.
We may sell the securities under a variety of methods including directly to investors, using an underwriting syndicate, through brokers, by block
trade or by other methods described in the shelf registration statement.

Commitments and Contractual Obligations

The following is a schedule of our commitments and contractual obligations outstanding at March 31, 2010:

(in thousands) Total
Less Than

1 Year
2-3

Years
4-5

Years
More Than

5 Years
Borrowings under line of credit $ 24,932 $ 24,932 $ �  $ �  $ �  
Purchase obligations 27,916 27,916 �  �  �  
Operating leases 17,879 2,996 5,752 4,703 4,428
Supply agreement 1,795 �  1,795 �  �  
Capital lease obligations 154 52 102 �  �  

$ 72,676 $ 55,896 $ 7,649 $ 4,703 $ 4,428
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Purchase obligations represent open non-cancelable purchase commitments for certain inventory components and services used in normal
operations. The purchase commitments covered by these agreements are generally for less than one year and aggregated approximately $27.9
million at March 31, 2010.

In September 2006, we entered into a supply agreement with a third-party vendor to purchase certain inventory parts that went �end of life.� This
supply agreement, as subsequently amended, commits the vendor to acquiring and storing approximately $6.5 million of inventory until
August 31, 2012 and allows us to place orders for the inventory four times a year. Upon the earlier of January 31, 2007 or completion of the
wafer
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fabrication process, we were required to and paid approximately $1.9 million of the $6.5 million. Further, upon expiration of the agreement on
August 31, 2012, if we do not purchase the full $6.5 million in inventory, we may be required to pay a penalty equal to 35% of the remaining
inventory balance. As of March 31, 2010, the remaining minimum commitment related to this agreement was $1.8 million, which is the 35%
�penalty� on the remaining inventory balance.

Our standard product sales and license agreements entered into in the ordinary course of business typically contain an indemnification provision
pursuant to which we indemnify, hold harmless, and agree to reimburse the indemnified party for losses suffered or incurred by the indemnified
party in connection with certain intellectual property infringement claims by any third party with respect to our products. Such provisions
generally survive termination or expiration of the agreements. The potential amount of future payments we could be required to make under
these indemnification provisions is, in some instances, unlimited.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In July 2008, the Company and the former CEO, James Bertelli, entered into an agreement for consulting services through June 30, 2010. The
consideration for these services totaled $0.2 million and is being paid out over the service period. As of March 31, 2010, the Company had made
payments of $0.2 million for consulting services under this agreement. Additionally, in July 2008, the Company entered into a five year
non-compete agreement with our former CEO. This agreement, which is carried as an intangible asset on the Company�s balance sheet, was
valued at $0.5 million and is being amortized over the life of the agreement. As of March 31, 2010, the Company had made payments of $0.3
million under this non-compete agreement.

RECENT ADOPTED ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In June 2009, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (�FASB�) issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (�SFAS�) No. 168, The
FASB Accounting Standards CodificationTM and the Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles�a replacement of FASB Statement
No. 162 (�FASB SFAS 168�). FASB SFAS 168 establishes the FASB Accounting Standards CodificationTM (�Codification�) as the source of
authoritative U.S. GAAP for nongovernmental entities. The Codification does not change U.S. GAAP. Instead, it takes the thousands of
individual pronouncements that currently comprise U.S. GAAP and reorganizes them into approximately 90 accounting Topics, and displays all
Topics using a consistent structure. Contents in each Topic are further organized first by Subtopic, then Section and finally Paragraph. The
Paragraph level is the only level that contains substantive content. Citing particular content in the Codification involves specifying the unique
numeric path to the content through the Topic, Subtopic, Section and Paragraph structure. FASB suggests that all citations begin with �FASB
ASC,� where ASC stands for Accounting Standards Codification. Changes to the ASC subsequent to June 30, 2009 are referred to as Accounting
Standards Updates (�ASU�).

In conjunction with the issuance of FASB SFAS 168, the FASB also issued ASU No. 2009-1, Topic 105�Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles (�FASB ASU 2009-1�), which includes FASB SFAS 168 in its entirety as a transition to the ASC. FASB ASU 2009-1 is effective for
interim and annual periods ending after September 15, 2009 and will not have an impact on our financial position or results of operations but
will change the referencing system for accounting standards.

Certain of the following pronouncements were issued prior to the issuance of the ASC and adoption of the ASUs. For such pronouncements,
citations to the applicable Codification by Topic, Subtopic and Section are provided where applicable in addition to the original standard type
and number.

Effective February 2010, we adopted FASB ASU 2010-09, Subsequent Events (�FASB ASU 2010-09�), which updated FASB ASC 855,
Subsequent Events (�FASB ASC 855�). FASB ASU 2010-09 clarifies the date through which we are required to evaluate subsequent events. SEC
filers will be required to evaluate subsequent events through the date that the financial statements are issued. Such adoption had no impact on
our financial position or results of operations as it only amends required disclosures.
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Effective January 1, 2010, we adopted FASB ASU 2010-06, Improving Disclosures about Fair Value Measurements (�FASB ASU
2010-06�). FASB ASU 2010-06 requires additional disclosures about fair value measurements including transfers in and out of Levels 1 and 2
and a higher level of disaggregation for the different types of financial instruments. For the reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements,
information about purchases, sales, issuances and settlements are presented separately. This standard is effective for interim and annual reporting
periods beginning after December 15, 2009 with the exception of revised Level 3 disclosure requirements which are effective for interim and
annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2010. Comparative disclosures are not required in the year of adoption. Such adoption
did not have a material impact on our financial position or results of operation.

Effective July 1, 2009, we adopted FASB ASU No. 2009-13, Multiple-Deliverable Revenue Arrangements (�FASB ASU 2009-13�), which
amends FASB ASC 605, Revenue Recognition. FASB ASU 2009-13 amends the FASB ASC to eliminate the residual method of allocation for
multiple-deliverable revenue arrangements, and requires that arrangement consideration be allocated at the inception of an arrangement to all
deliverables using the relative selling price method. The ASU also establishes a selling price hierarchy for determining the selling price of a
deliverable, which includes: (1) vendor-specific objective evidence if available; (2) third-party evidence if vendor-specific objective evidence is
not available; and (3) best estimated selling price if neither vendor-specific nor third-party evidence is available. Additionally, FASB ASU
2009-13 expands the disclosure requirements related to a vendor�s multiple-deliverable revenue arrangements. This guidance is effective for us
July 1, 2010; however, we have elected to early adopt as permitted by the guidance. As such, we have prospectively applied the provisions of
FASB ASU 2009-13 to revenue arrangements entered into or materially modified after July 1, 2009. See Note C to the consolidated financial
statements for disclosures regarding the adoption of FASB ASU 2009-13.

Effective July 1, 2009, we adopted FASB ASU No. 2009-14, Certain Revenue Arrangements That Include Software Elements (�FASB ASU
2009-14�), which amends FASB ASC 985, Software. FASB ASU 2009-14 amends the FASB ASC to change the accounting model for revenue
arrangements that include both tangible products and software elements, such that tangible products containing both software and non-software
components that function together to deliver the tangible product�s essential functionality are no longer within the scope of software revenue
guidance. This guidance is effective for us July 1, 2010; however, we have elected to early adopt as permitted by the guidance. As such, we will
prospectively apply the provisions of FASB ASU 2009-14 to revenue arrangements entered into or materially modified after July 1, 2009. Such
adoption did not have a material impact on our financial position or results of operations.

Effective July 1, 2009, we adopted FASB ASC 805, Business Combinations (�FASB ASC 805� and formerly referred to as SFAS No. 141(R) and
SFAS No. 141(R)-1). FASB ASC 805 requires the acquisition method to be applied to all transactions and other events in which an entity
obtains control over one or more other businesses, requires the acquirer to recognize the fair value of all assets and liabilities acquired, even if
less than one hundred percent ownership is acquired, and establishes the acquisition date fair value as measurement date for all assets and
liabilities assumed. Additionally, FASB ASC 805-20 provides further guidance on the initial recognition and measurement, subsequent
measurement and accounting, and discloses assets and liabilities arising from contingencies in business combinations. The guidance within
FASB ASC 805 is effective prospectively for any acquisitions made after July 1, 2009. In the period of adoption, we had no acquisitions and as
such, the adoption did not have a material impact on our financial position or results of operations.

Effective July 1, 2009, we adopted FASB Staff Position (�FSP�) No. 142-3, Determination of the Useful Life of Intangible Assets, which was
primarily codified into FASB ASC 350�Intangibles�Goodwill and Other (�FASB ASC 350�) in the FASB ASC. This guidance amends the factors
that should be considered in developing renewal or extension assumptions used to determine the useful life of a recognized intangible asset and
requires enhanced related disclosures. FASB ASC 350 improves the consistency between the useful life of a recognized intangible asset and the
period of expected cash flows used to measure the fair value of the asset. This guidance
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must be applied prospectively to all intangible assets acquired as of and subsequent to fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008. This
guidance became effective for us on July 1, 2009. Although future transactions involving intangible assets may be affected by this guidance, it
did not impact our financial position or results of operations as we did not acquire any intangible assets during the three and nine months ended
March 31, 2010.

Effective July 1, 2009, we adopted FSP No. 107-1 and APB Opinion 28-1, Interim Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments,
which is now part of FASB ASC 825, Financial Instruments (�FASB ASC 825�). FASB ASC 825 requires disclosures about fair value of financial
instruments for interim and annual reporting periods and is effective for interim reporting periods ending after June 15, 2009. Such adoption did
not have a material impact on our financial position or results of operations.

Effective August 2009, the we adopted FASB ASU No. 2009-05, Measuring Liabilities at Fair Value (�FASB ASU 2009-05�), which amends
ASC Topic 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures. FASB ASU 2009-05 provides clarification and guidance regarding how to value a
liability when a quoted price in an active market is not available for that liability. The changes to the FASB ASC as a result of this update were
effective for us on October 1, 2009. Such adoption did not have a material impact on our financial position or results of operations.

RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In March 2010, the FASB ratified ASU 2010-17, Revenue Recognition � Milestone Method (Topic 605): Milestone Method of Revenue
Recognition (�FASB ASU 2010-17�), which provides guidance related to revenue recognition that applies to arrangements with milestones
relating to research or development deliverables. This guidance provides criteria that must be met to recognize consideration that is contingent
upon achievement of a substantive milestone in its entirety in the period in which the milestone is achieved. This guidance is effective for us on
July 1, 2010 and is not expected to have a material impact to our consolidated financial position or results of operations.

ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
There were no material changes in our exposure to market risk from June 30, 2009 to March 31, 2010.

ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
(a) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We conducted an evaluation under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including the Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer (our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, respectively), regarding the effectiveness of our
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the
�Exchange Act�)), as of the end of the period covered by this report. Based on this evaluation, management has concluded that our disclosure
controls and procedures are effective. We continue to review our disclosure controls and procedures and may from time to time make changes
aimed at enhancing their effectiveness and to ensure that our systems evolve with our Company�s business. A control system, no matter how well
conceived and operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the objectives of the control system are met.

(b) Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There was no change in our internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rules 13c-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act) that
occurred during the quarter ended March 31, 2010 that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control
over financial reporting.
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PART II. OTHER INFORMATION

ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
We are subject to legal proceedings, claims and tax audits that arise in the ordinary course of business and in the opinion of management the
outcome of these matters will not have a material adverse effect on our financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS
You should carefully review and consider the information regarding certain factors that could materially affect our business, financial condition
or future results set forth under Part I�Item 1A (Risk Factors) in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009. There
have been no material changes from the factors disclosed in our 2009 Annual Report on Form 10-K, except as disclosed in our Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended December 31, 2009.

ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS

(a) The following table sets forth information about repurchases of our common stock for the three months ended March 31, 2010.

Period of Repurchase
Total Number of

Shares Purchased(1)

Average Price
Paid Per

Share

Total Number
of Shares

Purchased As
Part of Publicly

Announced
Program

January 1-31, 2010 1,193 $ 17.55 �  
February 1-28, 2010 3,407 15.29 �  
March 1-31, 2010 329 12.53 �  

Total 4,929

(1) Represents shares reacquired in connection with the surrender of shares to cover the minimum taxes on vesting of restricted stock.

ITEM 6. EXHIBITS
The following Exhibits are filed or furnished, as applicable, herewith:

10.1 Loan and Security Agreement dated February 12, 2010 between the Company and Silicon Valley Bank (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company�s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on February 19, 2010)

31.1 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15(d)-14(a)

31.2 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15(d)-14(a)

32.1+ Certification of the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
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+ Furnished herewith. This certificate shall not be deemed �filed� for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, or
otherwise subject to the liability of that section, nor shall it be incorporated by reference into any filing under the Securities Act of 1933 or
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.
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MERCURY COMPUTER SYSTEMS, INC.

Signatures

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in Chelmsford, Massachusetts, on May 6, 2010.

MERCURY COMPUTER SYSTEMS, INC.

By: /S/    ROBERT E. HULT        

Robert E. Hult
Senior Vice President,

Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer
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